B %X I & B F ®

VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



CONTENTS
B %

02
10
16
22
23

44

o4

/6
82

OUR VISION AND MISSION
FB = K fEap

CHAIRMAN'S FOREWORD
FREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REVIEW
HOTBEIEOREE

CALENDAR OF MAJOR EVENTS
REHE

OUR DEVELOPMENT
ADVANCING VOCATIONAL AND
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING

BRI R K

OUR COLLABORATORS
THRIVING TRUSTED PARTNERSHIPS

RS 1E

OUR PEOPLE
STRENGTHENING HUMAN CAPITAL

KBEAT

FINANCE
B LR

APPENDICES
F 53



l ! n[n:“L **bh—. ) ‘:lﬂ

Ml il AH|E l-u ‘
" | wlﬂx ;":

B A — .
e T TeE——— ' g
e .
" = rm s EL - -

L

L I(
:‘ ¥ ‘a:::i-:

D |
LE (TN

P,
-

=<5
',

=%
e 1\\-

- —

“r
\

g

FE = Kk #£ m

OUR VISION

AND
MISSION



04

CORPORATE
INFORMATION
& B

Vocational Training Council

The Vocational Training Council (VTC), established in 1982,
stands at the forefront of vocational and professional
education and training (VPET) in Hong Kong. As a statutory
body, we exist within the city’s education system to ensure
the skills of the Hong Kong workforce remain relevant and
future ready. Our mandate to provide VPET is vital in meeting
industry needs, and in fulfilling the aspirations of some
200,000 young people and in-service workers who attend
programmes across our 13 member institutions every year.

Members of the VTC Group

Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEI)
Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge (PEAK)
School for Higher and Professional Education (SHAPE)
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (IVE)

Hong Kong Design Institute (HKDI)

Hotel and Tourism Institute (HTI)

Chinese Culinary Institute (CClI)

International Culinary Institute (ICI)

Maritime Services Training Institute (MSTI)

Youth College

Pro-Act by VTC

Integrated Vocational Development Centre (IVDC)

Shine Skills Centre
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Vision

To be the leading provider of vocational
and professional education and
training in the region
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Mission

e To provide a valued choice to
school leavers and working adults
to acquire the values, knowledge
and skills for lifelong learning and
enhanced employability

¢ To provide valued support to
industries for their manpower
development
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Core Values

e To serve with integrity

¢ To be client-focused

e To strive for excellence

e To be entrepreneurial

e To forge partnerships with
stakeholders
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CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE
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The VTC is committed to a high
standard of corporate governance
and has always recognised good
governance as being crucial to its
effective operation. Our corporate
structure is well-defined and
authority is delegated within clearly
defined parameters, ensuring
efficiency in achieving our mission.

The VTC'’s governance and management
operate at three levels:

(a) The Council, together with its
committees and boards, is the
highest authority and responsible
for corporate policy, strategies and
management at a macro level;

(b) The Executive Director, supported
by the Caucus and various
committees, is responsible for the
execution of the Council's policy
and day-to-day management of the
VTGC;

(c) The Vocational Education and
Training (VET) Academic Board,
Higher Education Advisory
Committee (HEAC) together with
various committees and boards
under their purview, provide advice
on academic matters and oversee
their management.

The Council is composed of

22 members, including senior
Government officials and non-
governmental representatives from
the industrial, commercial, service,
labour and educational sectors.

The appointment of all members is
determined by the Chief Executive of
the HKSAR with the exception of the
Executive Director, who sits on the
Council as an ex-officio member.
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The Council is assisted by 25 Training
Boards whose membership consists
of stakeholders in nearly all major
economic sectors in Hong Kong. The
Training Boards are established to
advise the VTC on manpower demand
of the industries they represent, and
to recommend initiatives to meet the
assessed manpower demand. They
also play an important advisory role
in setting out directions, strategic
development and quality assurance
mechanisms for VTC programmes.

The VTC’s day-to-day management
comes under the purview of the
Executive Director, who reports to
the Council via its Chairman. The
Executive Director is supported by

the Caucus team, which guides and
manages the overall operation of the
VTC’s services. The Executive Director
also chairs the Quality Assurance
Steering Committee and Strategic
Plan Implementation Steering Group.

The VET Academic Board, chaired

by the Executive Director, formulates
major academic management
policies. The HEAC comprises
representatives from commerce,
industry and government bureaux. Its
function is to provide professional
and industry inputs to the development
and quality assurance of THEi
programmes as well as the
collaborative degree programmes.
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Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping

(Chairman)

2 Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming
(Deputy Chairman)

3 Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung
(Deputy Chairman)

4 Dr Carrie YAU

5 Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho
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CHAIRMAN'S
FOREWORD

Vocational and Professional Education and Training plays
a vital role in keeping Hong Kong forward-looking and
competitive.
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CHAIRMAN'S
FOREWORD
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Supported by

VTC JPMorgan

Future-Ready
Talent Incubation Program

Technological advancements are bringing

dramatic changes to the workplace. In the face

of the changing world, our younger generation
must acquire the new skills necessary to build
successful future careers. In this regard,
Vocational and Professional Education and Training (VPET)
plays a vital role in keeping Hong Kong forward-
looking and competitive.

RMRES  UBESETHRENTE - FE KL
AERENEE - TEBIEE - SEERKIELY
B BEETHEREEER  EXERBEBER -
MEBHFOIE EEE2A6 -

Over the years, our work has changed
the lives of many people, enabling
them to achieve excellence through
high quality, practical and relevant
VPET. To continue to play a pioneering
role in VPET and stay ahead of the
curve, we always challenge ourselves
to rethink what the workplace will
look like tomorrow and decades from
now, and how we can best support
the communities we serve for
generations to come.

During the year in review, we
continued to innovate and sharpen
our focus as a key player in VPET, and
as a trusted partner to industries

in supporting their manpower
development.

Skilling for the Future

The world is accelerating into a new
era of technological transformation,
with digitalisation having already
permeated every aspect of home and
community life.

These developments pose challenges
for local industries but also serve
as a powerful driving force for
future growth. To support Hong
Kong’s strategic development in

the digital economy, as well as
harness the collective strengths of
the Guangdong-Hong Kong—Macao
Greater Bay Area and beyond, it is
more important than ever to nurture
skilled professionals for the city’s
long-term development.

The VTC has pushed forward efforts
to augment its range of VPET
offerings that blend classroom
training, applied skills, global
exposure and real-world relevance.
We have set up new infrastructure
and facilities to enhance innovation,
co-creation and entrepreneurship,
and introduced new initiatives to
bring VPET to the next level. We are
also widening our global footprint

to create diverse overseas learning
opportunities for our students.
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National University
of Singapore

School of Continuing
»and Lifelong Education

*

Making Strides in the New
Landscape

Our youth today face a world where
broader and deeper skill sets are
more essential for success than
ever before. To prepare students

for the digjtal age and respond to
changing job trends, we continuously
develop and enhance our curricula
to reflect the competencies required
for a smart workforce, including
interdisciplinary knowledge and STEM
proficiency.

To address the fast-changing needs
of the city’s industries, we strongly
encourage ‘upskilling’ among

new and existing employees. The
Government has provided subsidies
for designated part-time programmes
in Engineering and Technology since
2016, and has recently extended
this to the Creative Industries. About
4,500 students have benefitted so
far.

CLP Power q);u:'.'l‘, @ CLP @ th "TC

ENIIESUEEE

FlRGRaEEN

Memorandum of Understanding Signing Ceremony

on Jointly Developing the [

On the infrastructure side, the
opening of our new International
Culinary Institute campus
demonstrates our commitment to
providing opportunities for aspiring
young chefs. The new THEi campus
in Chai Wan likewise offers an
innovative and dynamic learning
environment for 21st century
professional training.

Boosting Strategic
Partnerships

Dual-track learning, which integrates
structured classroom learning with
on-the-job training, is also high on our
agenda.

We are greatly encouraged by the
positive feedback to our pioneering
VTC Earn & Learn Scheme, a
tripartite endeavour between the
Government, industry and the VTC.
Since its introduction in 2014, some
300 public and private organisations
from different industries have taken
part in the Scheme, as well as
Government departments, and over
4,600 students have benefitted.

n Power Engineering Programme
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We will continue to take forward
workplace learning and assessment
to enhance training effectiveness, and
introduce our Pilot Incentive Scheme
to Employers to encourage employer
participation in these assessments.

Meanwhile, the VTC continues to
forge partnerships and collaborations
to drive VPET and innovations that
can have a positive impact on society.
For example, we joined J.R Morgan
and Microsoft in establishing pilot
talent incubation and employability
programmes respectively to help

VTC students advance their STEM
careers.

Pioneering Digital
Transformation

With technologijcal developments
having a transformative impact on
many industries and even economies
worldwide, we are very conscious of
the need to stay constantly on top

of emerging trends and be ready to
digitalise the working and learning
space. Our aim at the VTC is to be a
pioneer in our field and ensure that
we can continue providing a robust
and sustainable VPET system that
meets industry’s needs for skilled,
innovative, technology-savvy and work-
ready professionals.

I would like to warmly thank my
fellow Council Members, the

HKSAR Government and all other
stakeholders for their support in

the past year. By building on our
solid base of excellence, the VTC

will continue to contribute to talent
development for industry and society.

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, BBS, JP
Chairman

BB EEHREERSEE RT& - '
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- EXECUTIVE
- DIRECTOR'S

REVIEW

An effective 21st century education must be able to
connect students with the real world and empower them
with skills and work knowledge.
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EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR'S
REVIEW
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The VTC is committed to the pursuit of high
quality VPET, empowering people to develop the
knowledge and skills necessary to thrive in an
evolving world.

VIC ENREHEENREZTSHE - WELZESR
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2018t RHEAEABEEARENE
Worldskills Hong Kong Competition 2018

As the pace of technological progress
accelerates, we are working to
ensure that our students are able to
excel and become future pillars of
industry who can work professionally,
flexibly and collaboratively. Keeping a
close eye on industrial advancement
trends, we have initiated new plans
and projects during the period under
review, all designed to prepare a
steady supply of skilled professionals
for tomorrow’s world of work.

Creating New Knowledge
and Skills

Our fast-changing world is redefining
the skills that students need to be
successful in the future. Industry-
oriented professionalism and
competencies are essential for young

people to thrive in the new technology-

driven environment. Employers are
putting increased emphasis on cross-
disciplinary skills and the capacity for
innovation, especially within dynamic
and modernising industries.

To better equip our students, the
VTC has continued to expand our
programme offerings, as well as
enhancing curriculum and teaching
practices to strengthen the work-
readiness and expertise of our
students.

New programmes in emerging skills
areas have been offered to address
growing manpower demands, such
as interdisciplinary Higher Diploma
programmes in Financial Technology,
Public Relations and Digital
Communication. In addition to helping
our students acquire new skills, we
place strong emphasis on their all-
round development, especially in the
areas of ethics, design thinking skills
and caring mindsets so that they are
equipped to make a positive impact
for now and for the future.

3

Iskills

8
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SINGAPORE
INTERNATIONAL TVET
CONFERENCE 2018

3 -4 0CTOBER 2018

Harnessing Technology for
Effective Learning

To prevail in the working environments
of today and tomorrow, young people
must be able to hone their skills

in a realife context. With this in
mind, we have formulated strategies
to establish specialised facilities

that can facilitate smart learning.
These facilities include our BIMiHub,
Multimedia Interactive Learning Hub
and Smart Living Home, which have
already been put into operation.
Cybersecurity Centre and Innovation
and Technology Co-creation Centre
will follow in academic year 2019/20.

The immersive environment offered
by these establishments provides
students with a test bed where they
can explore new ideas and apply their
skills and knowledge to help solve
real-world problems.

Building a Global
Perspective

During the year, we renewed agreements
or formed new partnerships with
various counterparts in the Mainland
and overseas to maximise the
impact of our education, including
vocational training institutes from
Argentina, Australia, Belgium, Brazil,
France, Germany, Israel, Italy, Japan,
Luxembourg, Mexico, New Zealand,
Poland, Singapore, the United
Kingdom and the United States.

This expanding network helps both
the VTC and its students to grow. In
2018/19, some 7,000 students took
part in various exchange and industry
attachment activities. Through
participation in international events
and contests like the WorldSkills
competitions, our students were

able to sharpen their skills, gain
international exposure, and benefit
from cultural exchange.

At the same time, sharing insights
and ideas with counterparts worldwide
brings us new inspiration to shape the
development of VPET programmes
that can effectively address the
challenges of the 21st century.

B
Fashion Design
Product Design

Landscape Architecture

Horticulture ag
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K5 WXL R R R -

SN - R BB BRI F R KoL
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REELE  SREZRE  BERESH
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S Pire (Hons)

gdscape Manager
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Propelling Applied
Education

In the face of the fast-changing
economy, our younger generations
need to develop dynamic mindsets
and broader skills to apply their
knowledge in smart ways. An
effective 21st century education must
be able to connect students with the
real world and empower them with
skills and work knowledge. With
applied education gaining momentum
worldwide, we will continue to engage
our stakeholders in driving innovation
and meeting practical demands for
new talent.

| am grateful for the visionary
leadership of our Council Members
in steering the VTC towards many
outstanding results. | would also
like to thank our partners, donors
and alumni communities who have
been unrelenting in their support for
the development of VPET. Equally
important is the work of all our
staff members who constantly help
the VTC family move smoothly and

confidently towards new milestones.

We are looking forward to another
accomplished year ahead.

Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP
Executive Director

BERFYE HDEAEHE

HEECRARNEERE  FE K
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CALENDAR OF
MAJOR EVENTS
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STEM Education Day 2018

cum Mol Signing Ceremony on Indusiry Pariner Collaboration Scheme for

VTC STEM Education Centre

18 -4-2018

May £ A

The VTC signed an

MoU with ServicelQ,

an Industry Training
Organisation in New
Zealand, to forge

closer collaboration in
implementing workplace
learning and assessment
in Hong Kong.

VTC E2 37 75 3§ 17 2 15 )l 1
& ServicelQ HFIAEE
B MREHEE BB
HITRISEE RiTZ -

STEMBANFABVIC STEMBF L [RFEREHD ] RoHEEMEL

vrc =

Memorandum of Understanding Signi

10 May 2018 k
;

VTC 2018

April @A

The VTC organised the STEM Education Day,
bringing together STEM professionals, industry
partners, teachers and students to learn about
the growing shift to STEM (Science, Technology,
Engineering & Mathematics) education. We

also gained support from distinguished industry
partners and organisations under a Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU) to foster greater
collaboration in STEM-related innovation and talent
development.

VICRITSTEMEAHER  STEMEHEE AL - ¥
FIKHERMARE—E - THSTEM (B8 - B
TREHMEB) HENERBE - WMIFRERNHF
REEFEIAFETE - S E STEM BRI A 8I T
B1E - BB AT o

June <A

The Opening
Ceremony of the
WorldSkills Hong Kong
Competition 2018
marked the start of
contests in 25 trades.

R IRERBEEERE

BIRE 2018 B X - 25
R RERERERRA -

June <A

An 11-day annual design
exhibition ‘Emerging Design
Talents 2018: CHANCE' was

July £ A

The VTC and the CLP
Power Academy entered
into a partnership to

staged at Hong Kong Design
Institute and IVE (Lee Wai
Lee), showing the innovative
projects of design students
and graduates.

HKDI % IVE ( Z= = 7] ) £
TAHILBENFEERTE
‘Emerging Design Talents EBHENIREERE B
2018: CHANCE’ © B H % =t FHARMBEBERITEER
BENEEENESESR - He o

launch a new parttime
Power Engineering Diploma
programme, providing
upskilling opportunities for
young people in the power
industry.

VTC B2 R B 2 & ER 3

"

& August N\ A

The VTC, the Open University of Hong Kong,
Caritas Institute of Higher Education and Caritas
Bianchi College of Careers launched VPETCity,
Hong Kong'’s first cross-institutional online VPET
teaching and learning platform.

VICKIHBE B LRRAAE FEHZLE[REHE

ARFTEXER HH2BEEBRAIRZNBE
ETHARLBEHYERAZFa—REREN

September 1L A

Jointly organised by the VTC and overseas partner
institutions, the 12th International Symposium

on Advances in Technology Education was held

in Hong Kong for the first time. The four-day
symposium gathered some 250 educators and
experts from institutions of higher education in
engineering and technology at home and abroad to
shape the future of VPET and to instil young people
with the knowledge required for a smart future.

VTC Bt R/ SMAHF B AR B 3 55 12 J& B B R 22 BH i
REMRTE - —EORNEBEREEBRT ES
#) 250 BAM B TIZ R R ERB RO
BEREENER  RalBEZSHEOREK - ARk
MBEES  HPHEBWTHER -
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A new Building Information Modelling
Innovation Hub (BIMiHub) aimed
at upgrading and updating the
training of students and in-service
practitioners on BIM applications was
established at VTC Tsing Yi campus.

I/ VIC B RREH) BIM Bl 5 /0
A REERERALRERHEE
BB P E B R F R EE BB
& R F Ay

The grand opening of the International Culinary Institute represented

a new milestone in the development of VPET, demonstrating VTC’s
commitment to nurturing quality manpower in the field of international
cuisines to sustain Hong Kong'’s reputation as Asia’s gourmet paradise.

BRELESERERERE  EREREZTHEZROMERR ¥R VIC
BHBEEFHFEANT ZEEE [DMNERZE] BXE -

/:
VTC Opening Ceremony of VTC Building Information Modelling Innovation Hub
24 Novembear 2(

ar 2018

Under the baton of Artistic Director
and Conductor Dr Henry SHEK, the
VTC Symphony Orchestra and Chorus
presented its annual concert ‘From
Russia with Love’.

VIC RELERABERETT [BEHK
B AFEE%e  H2MAERE

BAEZBLITEREEREE -

The VTC 2018 Graduation Ceremony was held for some 21,000
graduates who were conferred with academic awards from
Certificate to Higher Diploma. In the same month, over 700
graduates were conferred with Bachelor’s degrees at THEi's
Graduation Ceremony.

#)21,000 HEELE VIC 2018 FEEXHE - BEEEES
MXOBREZE - FA #8700 BEXARN THEI X HAEEFE

B ERE -

Organised by HKDI and funded by CreateHK, the
three-week Hong Kong Denim Festival was held in
Hong Kong for the first time, featuring a series of
activities including a denim bazaar, exhibition and
design workshops, as well as seminars in PMQ,

Central and Sham Shui Po fabric wholesale district to

promote creative arts and culture.

HKDI & (83 &E® | BBENERE [HBL(FE)
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A HealthTech Forum titled ‘Smart Healthcare’ was
held at IVE (Kwai Chung), gathering experts and
industry professionals to explore the application
of technology and innovation to the healthcare
industry.

RIVE (378) BITNEEMZNEE - A [E6E
BENUA] B8 EEFFZNEXAEZAL—F
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The VTC collaborated with J.P Morgan to establish
a three-year pilot initiative ‘Future-Ready Talent
Incubation Program’ to benefit around 600 Higher
Diploma students in the pursuit of STEM-related
careers.

VICEEERKBEFEMAH=ZFN [BBEEAE
BitEl] - HEH 600 B HRELR S STEM
MEEETE -

HealthTech Forum il
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Smart Healthcare ZEEEEEFH(T
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EXTENDING

NEW FRONTIERS

gl B Kk XK

In the face of a fast-changing world, the VTC endeavours to enhance
students’ skills and professionalism and prepare them for a lifetime
career. Beyond providing broad and deep VPET, we offer a nurturing
environment and create diverse learning opportunities that allow young
people to grow and excel.

HHEHESRER  VICRNERBENFEERRE - KiBMFIFHA
REEX - RMERRIENEEMARE - WRHERRFEMNZ TE
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ADDRESSING THE NEEDS FOR
NEW KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS

BORIE FEEHAERE

Talent requirements keep changing
nowadays, driven by socio-economic
and technological advancements. To
ensure our students are equipped
with new knowledge and skills to face
the challenges ahead, we continue to
enhance the diversity, relevance and
agility of our programmes and their
curricula.

New Programmes Open
New Doors

Cross-disciplinary collaborations

and competencies have been
gaining increasing importance in
professional fields. During the review
period, we introduced a suite of new
interdisciplinary programmes to meet
industry needs in the 21st century.
Students will be trained to become
innovative and interdisciplinary
professionals for various industries.

A
e
-

A number of new programmes in
specialised fields were also offered
in response to industry needs,
namely Community Service Planning
and Navigation, and Baking and
Pastry Arts at Higher Diploma level;
and Hotel Studies and Business
Event Operations at Diploma level.
The newly-launched three-year
Diploma of Vocational Baccalaureate
programmes in the design and
engineering streams for Secondary
Three graduates provide a more
comprehensive progression pathway
for secondary school students.
Upon completion of the Vocational
Baccalaureate programme, students
can progress into higher education
locally or overseas.
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Dual-track Learning in
Action

The VTC Earn & Learn Scheme was
introduced in 2014 with the support
of the Government and industry to
build a dualtrack pathway for young
people and increase human capital
for industry. It covers industries with
high manpower demand such as
electrical and mechanical engineering,
construction, automotive and aviation,
and over 4,600 trainees have been
benefitted since its launch.

Given the positive feedback, the
Government announced in the 2018
Policy Address that it would regularise
the Scheme from 2019/20 academic
year with 1,200 places on offer per
year. A ‘Pilot Incentive Scheme to
Employers’ will also be introduced to
encourage employers’ participation in
workplace learning and assessment
and enhance the effectiveness of
manpower training.

In the year under review, we
introduced Earn & Learn Degree
Programmes in building services
engineering and civil engineering.
Students are equipped with up-to-
date and professional knowledge
through studying at THEi and at

the same time accumulate work
experience while earning an income
in the workplace.

The VTC also administers
apprenticeship and traineeship
schemes that offer school-leavers
valuable choices to receive
systematic workplace training and
equip them with the competence and
skill needed for their professional
development. During the year,

over 2,000 participants joined the
apprenticeship schemes which cover
some 70 trades.

Over 800 trainees have joined the
traineeship scheme for beauty and
hairdressing industries since its
launch.

BEEHRSFRN
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Workplace Learning and
Assessment

Workplace learning and assessment
is instrumental in ensuring the
successful integration of classroom
study and workplace learning involving
trainees, trainers and employers.
Referencing best practice and
successful experience in overseas
countries, the VTC has introduced a
web-based workplace learning and
assessment platform to facilitate the
acquisition of professional skills and
recognition of qualifications.

This new initiative has already been
implemented in hospitality and
interdisciplinary programmes and
will be extended to engineering and
applied science programmes in the
next academic year.
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GROOMING FUTURE-READY

TALENT
BIEIN RRET

With an aim to nurturing talent for
social advancement, we have devoted
significant efforts to pushing the
boundaries of VPET.

Strengthening STEM
Education

Being a keen promoter of STEM
education, we have actively
collaborated with industry to
undertake interdisciplinary projects
that can nurture interest in learning
STEM subjects among the younger
generation, and have also invited
industry professionals to join a ‘Train
the Trainer’ coaching scheme for
promoting STEM learning.

Students’ curiosity about STEM
has also been nourished by STEM-
related activities including workshops
and summer camps tailored for
secondary school students, as well
as competitions such as the Hong
Kong Secondary Innovation and
Technology Competition 2018 and
Hong Kong Robotic Olympiad 2018
organised by VTC STEM Education
Centre.

VICE NBILBEZETHE  BET
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ENHANCING THE REACH OF VPET

EIHEBEHE

The VTC actively promotes VPET

in the secondary education sector,
encouraging students to recognise
the value of VPET and plan ahead for
their future studies and careers.

VPET in Secondary
Education Sector

Various community outreach
programmes covering Applied
Learning (ApL) courses, taster
programmes and career planning
outreach activities have been
arranged to help secondary students
plan their future learning and career
goals.

In 2018/19 year, around 2,000
Secondary Five students were
engaged in ApL courses in various
areas of study. Some 430 talks
were also arranged in around

250 secondary schools to enrich
students’ understanding of the
multiple pathways for further study
and provide the latest information
about VPET programmes offered by
the VTC.
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Support for Youths with
Special Needs

The VTC endeavours to provide equal
access to VPET for all students.

In the academic year 2018/19,
about 450 non-engaged youths
joined Vocational Development
Programmes. Some 20 dedicated
VPET programmes were also provided
to around 700 non-Chinese speaking
students to meet different training
needs.

During the 2018/19 academic year,
over 1,800 students with special
educational needs were enrolled

on our various pre-employment
programmes. In addition, Shine Skills
Centre continues to provide training
for students with special educational
needs, and provide professional

support services to students in need.

In collaboration with the Social
Welfare Department, about 300
residents of the Tuen Mun Children
and Juvenile Home were provided
with tailor-made VPET programmes.
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Supporting Development
of the Qualifications
Framework

Riding on the Qualifications
Framework (QF) platform, the VTC
ensures quality VPET programmes
are offered for young people and
practitioners in various industries
to attain recognised qualifications
and upgrade their skills for better
advancement opportunities.

=

In support of QF, the VTC has
contributed to the development of 32
sets of Specification of Competency
Standards (SCS) and two SCS-
based Training Packages covering
14 industries embarking on QF. As
part of its support to the QF, the VTC
also acts as the Recognition of Prior
Learning (RPL) assessment agency
to assess the skills, knowledge and
experience acquired by individuals
from ten industries, namely Printing
& Publishing, Watch & Clock,
Hairdressing, Property Management,
Automotive, Jewellery, Catering
(Chinese Cuisine), Beauty, Retail,
and the Electrical and Mechanical
Services industries.
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Enhancing Quality
Assurance

In offering valued choices of VPET
for students to acquire relevant
knowledge and skills, the VTC
continues to benchmark its award-
bearing programmes against the
Hong Kong Qualifications Framework.

In the 2018/19 academic year, five
VTC degree programmes and ten non-
local degree programmes operated
by VTC were accredited or re-
accredited by the Hong Kong Council
for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications.

We also conducted international
quality assurance (QA) benchmarking
and learned good practices from
successful higher education institutes
overseas to further improve the QA
system. This pragmatic approach

has helped ensure that our VPET
programmes and services meet the
evolving needs of industries and
students.
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DRIVING INNOVATION
HE B 2l F

Innovation and creativity are essential
attributes for students to rise to

the massive challenges of the
knowledge-based economy. The VTC
has stepped up its efforts to drive
innovation in applied research and
entrepreneurship.

Cross-institutional Online
Platform

Technology-enhanced learning is

one of the major VPET trends in the
21st century. Funded by the Quality
Enhancement Support Scheme, Hong
Kong’s first open online learning

and teaching platform ‘VPETCity’

was established by the VTC in
collaboration with The Open University
of Hong Kong, Caritas Institute of
Higher Education and Caritas Bianchi
College of Careers. This platform
provides students, teachers, service
providers and the public with an open
online platform to exchange and use
VPET learning and teaching materials
in the areas of Hotel and Catering,
Health Care and Community Services,
Business and Management, and
Servicing.

Promoting Applied
Research

In 2018/19, THEI received research
grant awards totalling HK$7.2 million
from various funding schemes to
conduct research and organise
educational activities.

To encourage entrepreneurship and
help aspiring students fulfil their
ambitions, an Innov8 Enterprise Start-
up Programme for THEI students was
launched. The programme offers

a variety of support services to
incubatees, helping young graduates
to develop their ventures.
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SERVING INDUSTRY WITH

EXPERTISE

BHEET RBER

At VTC, we are keen to provide
flexible study pathways and promote
lifelong learning so as to equip
people for pursuing further career
development and advancement. We
also work closely with industry to
encourage upskilling and professional
development of the workforce.

Facilitating Industry
Development

We have continued to provide
corporate training, consultancy
services and e-learning solutions

to corporations for addressing
training and development needs.

An array of in-service training
programmes ranging from award-
bearing programmes to continuing
professional development training
and short courses in various areas
were offered through PEAK. New
training areas and topics such as
Cybersecurity, FinTech and artificial
intelligence were delivered to meet
the ever-changing industry demands
to prepare lifelong learners for smart
city developments.

In parallel, IVDC has offered a

wide variety of retraining and skills
development programmes to people
with diverse backgrounds.

Fortifying Lifelong Learning
Provision

Following the roll-out of the
Engineering Training Subsidy Scheme
by the Government in 2016/17,
which offers tuition fee subsidies to
those taking designated professional
part-time VTC programmes in the
construction and engineering areas,
the VTC will pilot a further subsidy
scheme for the creative industries
starting in September 2019.

In collaboration with industry
partners, new programmes in various
areas including cruise operations,
industry 4.0 and plumbing services
have also been launched to promote
skills upgrading.
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Skills Recognition for
Professionals

The VTC has stepped up its in-service
support endeavours, which include
vocational assessments for various
service industries.

Building on the vocational
assessment system, multipartite
collaborations took place under

the ‘One Examination, Multiple
Certification’ system for Beauty Care
and Hairdressing. Since 2013, over
1,800 candidates have taken this
assessment either in Hong Kong

or the Mainland. Starting from 1
January 2019, candidates passing
the assessment in Beauty Care

can achieve recognition from Hong
Kong, the National Occupational
Qualification system of the Mainland,
the International Professional
Standards Network (ipsn) and the
Labour Affairs Bureau of Macao.

Since 2015, the vocational
assessment in Arboriculture offered
by VTC has become a requirement
for workers undertaking tree pruning
works involving the use of chainsaws
for Government contracts. Over

230 candidates have taken the
assessment since its launch.

Aligning VPET Services to
Industries

To assess the manpower demand and
training needs of different industries,
respective VTC Training Boards for
the 24 designated industry sectors
conduct full-scale manpower surveys
at various intervals once every four
years. These are supplemented by
manpower updates to provide the
various stakeholders with useful
information for their future manpower
planning, as well as the formulation
of education and training policies.

The online VTC Occupation Dictionary,
covering some 500 occupations in
12 industries, provides students and
working adults with a comprehensive
career planning resource.
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SUSTAINABLE CAMPUSES AND SMART
INFRASTRUCTURE

BLEERE RESEZRR

A dynamic learning environment
with quality training facilities can
contribute to successful learning
outcomes and encourage innovation
and collaboration. During the year,
new infrastructure projects and
facilities came into operation.

Supportive Learning
Environment

The new campus of THEi in Chai
Wan, equipped with advanced
training facilities including a Fashion
Technology Workshop, Digital
Prototyping Workshop, Environmental
Laboratory, Surveying Studio, Sports
Biomechanics Laboratory and Training
Restaurant, provides students with a
conducive environment for learning,
innovation and unleashing their future
potential.

The new ICI campus in Pokfulam,
purpose-built to train and groom high
calibre culinary professionals, was
officially opened in 2018.
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New Facilities to Promote
Smart Learning

To make learning more fun and
effective, the VTC has continued
the development of smart training
facilities to facilitate active and
action-based learning.

The Building Information Modelling
Innovation Hub (BIMiHub) was
established in Tsing Yi campus

to equip students and in-service
practitioners with the latest know-
how to support technological
development of the industry. The hub
also advances our collaborations
with industry partners to promote
BIM solutions for the industry.

More smart city-related training
facilities will be put into operation in
2019/20 academic year, including
the Innovation and Technology Co-
Creation Centre, Cybersecurity Centre
and Internet-of-Things Innovation and
Technology Centre.

Making use of Virtual Reality (VR) and
Augmented Reality (AR) technologies,
teaching and learning packages have
been developed to enhance students’
learning experience in the automobile,
aircraft maintenance, building
services engineering and maritime
services sectors. We have also joined
hands with industry partners to offer
customised training solutions for
such sectors as logistics, airport
operations and lift maintenance.
Simulating workplace environments,
these training packages and solutions
allow students to undertake different
tasks and react to safety-critical and
rare events, enhancing their work-
readiness and preparing them to
make appropriate decisions when
facing dangerous or extraordinary
situations.
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The VTC values partnerships with its collaborators at home and abroad,
which open up new scope for VPET development.

Towards this end, we have actively forged partnerships with institutions
and organisations, generating synergies and long-standing sustainable
value. During the year, we concluded 90 new and renewed agreements
and Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs) with local and overseas
partners at corporate and institutional levels, in furtherance of our joint
efforts to promote VPET and expand the educational and experiential
exposure enjoyed by our students.
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LOCAL INDUSTRY
SUPPORT

iR XEBE

To facilitate upward mobility for
students and build a wider talent pool
to meet industry’s growing demands,
we co-operated with various industry
partners to offer responsive industry-
related programmes and training.
MoUs were signed with organisations
such as Siemens to nurture Internet-
of-Things professionals, and with the
Hong Kong Cruise & Yacht Industry
Association, CLP Power Academy

and Hong Kong International Aviation
Academy to help practitioners further
develop their careers in respective
industries. With support from different
industries, a Workplace Learning and
Assessment Scheme was initiated to
integrate students’ VPET studies with
real work experiences.

Donations and Scholarships

Our nurturing of talent was
strengthened by staunch support
from external organisations and
partners. Recently, we gained a new
donation from the J.R Morgan Chase
Foundation to establish the Future-
Ready Talent Incubation Program
supporting 600 VTC Higher Diploma
students to pursue STEM-related
careers for the 21st century smart
city. Another donation from the
Tam Luen Charitable Foundation
recognised DVE students with
excellent academic performance
and progress, while the Peer
Support Programme supported by
the Hong Kong Association of Lady
Horse Lovers provided peer-support
services to Youth College students
with special educational needs.

Scholarships continued to be
provided by Wu Jieh Yee Bursary,
HSBC, Hong Kong International
Theme Parks, Shanghai Commercial
Bank, Rotary District 3450 and
others, encouraging our students

to pursue personal growth and
development.
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Honorary Fellowships

Honorary Fellowships are VTC’s
highest honour and are conferred
on distinguished individuals who
have made prominent contributions
to the development of VPET or

to the community of Hong Kong,
demonstrating special affinity with
the work and values of the VTC.

In 2018/19, we celebrated the
conferment of six Honorary Fellows
at the VTC Graduation Ceremony,
namely:

e Mrs Agnes KOON WOO Kam-oi, MH
Chief Executive, KSY Speciality
Limited

e Ms LI Fungying, SBS, JP
Former Chairperson, Federation of
Hong Kong and Kowloon Labour
Unions

Ms Bianca MA Kin-san
Volunteer Professional in Media,
Communications and Project
Management for AR Charitable
Foundation

Mr PANG Kam-chiu
Chief Executive Officer, Pivot Point
College Hong Kong

Mr Bob TAN Beng-hai
Chairman, Institute of Technical
Education, Singapore

Mr Simon WONG Ka-wo, BBS, JP
Chairman, Kampery Group
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STRENGTHENING MAINLAND AND
REGIONAL CONNECTIONS

ERED A EE M

Our ever-expanding network with
Mainland and regional partners plays
an important role in the promotion
of VPET. We leveraged on these
partnerships in the past year to help
groom talent for the new century.

Invigorating Relationships

The VTC made significant headway
in extending its relationships into
the Mainland and forging new ties
across the region. New strategic
collaborations including joint
programmes, research projects
and exchanges were established
by concluding MoUs with partners
such as Alibaba Cloud, Guangzhou
Academy of Fine Arts, Ningbo
Municipal Human Resources and
Social Security Bureau.

Our relationships with the Mainland
and regional partners also provided
students with opportunities to engage
in internships, job placements and
research projects. For example, our
collaboration with Guangxi vocational
institutes gave 100 VTC Higher
Diploma students the opportunity

to participate in academic research
with five Guangxi vocational schools
during the year.
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EMBRACING REGIONAL

OPPORTUNITIES

MEEE RRAS

The development of the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
(Greater Bay Area) has brought

new opportunities for collaboration.
Our flourishing partnership further
connects us with regional partners in
countries such as Malaysia, Thailand
and the United Arab Emirates.

During the year, several thousands of
students went on exchanges to

the Greater Bay Area and countries
along the Belt and Road under
various funding schemes. By
participating in diverse activities
including industry attachments,
competitions, exhibitions and cultural
and knowledge exchanges, our young

people were able to hone their skills
and broaden their vision, gaining
meaningful experience from these
fast-developing areas. For example,
students from THEi’s Civil Engineering
programme participated in a summer
internship programme in Zhuhai to
learn from professionals there about
large-scale construction projects and
widen their professional perspectives.

Familiarisation visits to the Greater
Bay Area were also organised for staff
members, enabling them to keep
abreast of the latest developments
and expand their collaboration
networks.
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Advocating Knowledge
Exchange

To promote knowledge exchange and
co-operation, we also participated
actively in educational fairs,
conferences, forums and skills
competitions across the Mainland
and the region. These included

the Belt and Road International
Conference on TVET (Technical and
Vocational Education and Training),
the Ningbo-Hong Kong Education
Cooperation Forum, the 20th
Cross-Strait Conference on Higher
Technical and Vocational Education,
the Victorian TAFE Association
State Conference in Australia, and
the Singapore International TVET
Conference 2018 in Singapore.

In addition to these outreach
activities, the VTC welcomed
representatives from the Mainland
and countries such as Australia,
Japan, Malaysia, Singapore, South
Korea, Sri Lanka and Thailand to
explore collaboration opportunities
and exchange professional
experience on VPET and talent
development. For example, some 90
delegations from government bodies,
industries, academic institutions

and agencies from various cities and
provinces of China visited the VTC
and exchanged knowledge and best
practices for VPET development.
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GLOBAL NETWORK

The VTC is making sustained efforts
to broaden its global network.
Through study tours, visits, joint
programmes and projects, our
students are nurtured to possess
an international outlook with
strengthened ability to thrive in an
increasingly connective multi-cultural
environment.

In the year under review, we
established strong bonds with
partners around the world through
new MoUs and agreements, including
those from Australia, Belgium,
France, Israel, Italy, Luxembourg,
New Zealand, Poland, Singapore and
the United Kingdom. Articulation
agreements were also reached with
University College Birmingham and
University of Lincoln in the United
Kingdom to open the door to further
study opportunities.

An MoU with the School of Continuing
and Lifelong Education at the
National University of Singapore was
signed in March 2019 to collaborate
on the provision of lifelong learning
programmes.

VT1C

Signing of Memorandum of Understanding
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Driving Impact with World
Insights and Knowledge

In the past year, we organised various
joint events with overseas partners.
The International Symposium on
Advances in Technology Education
(ISATE) attracted around 250

local and overseas participants
from ten countries and regions to
share knowledge and experience

in practice-based engineering

and technology education. The
Fourth International Conference on
Linguistics and Languages Studies
was held by THEI in collaboration with
The Chartered Institute of Linguists
Hong Kong Society to promote the
professional use of languages in
Hong Kong. A multi-dimensional,
educational and cultural programme
called ‘Imaging Poland’, organised
by HKDI in collaboration with the
University of the Arts Poznan (UAP)

and featuring an exhibition, lectures,
workshops, discussion sessions
and film screenings, enhanced the
teaching and learning of VTC staff
and students.

In addition, globally recognised
trainers and world-renowned
professionals were invited to share
their expertise and insight with VTC
lecturers and students. During the
year, professionals from Austria,
Finland, France, Japan, Taiwan,
Turkey, the United Kingdom and

the United States conducted skills
demonstrations, training workshops,
master talks and seminars in a
wide range of areas covering STEM
Education, culinary skills, landscape
architecture, gerontechnology and
nursing.
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BUILDING
HUMAN CAPITAL
B A AA

At the VTC, we strive to maintain a corporate culture of excellence. By
providing stimulating and diverse learning opportunities, we empower
our students, alumni and staff to make achievements and contribute to
the community in the new age of technology and innovation.

VIC RAGERE MR E  BRGEERENZ TEBRE - &
24 RAMBIEHNBREREE  ERHtE -

ALL-ROUND STUDENT

DEVELOPMENT
EEZTEA

The VTC is committed to facilitating
students’ all-round development

and empowering them to reach their
full potential. Our market-driven
programmes provide them with cross-
disciplinary knowledge and skills

for the future. We strive to advance
their competencies and skills in such
areas as communications and digjtal
skills, critical thinking and design
thinking capabilities required for the
21st century workforce.

During the year, students were
exposed to a wide range of
enrichment programmes and
extracurricular activities including

the Student Peer Mentoring Scheme
‘IVElite’, the challenge-based
programme ‘Road to Marathon’, and
the public speaking initiatives ‘Speak
for Success’ and Wofoo Leaders’
Network. These learning experiences
helped our students develop their
talents into strengths while boosting
their confidence.

The two-month-long ‘HKDI inspire*
Design Thinking 2018’ event, which
featured a series of master lectures
and workshops, also helped VTC
students harness the power of
design thinking to resolve problems
in different facets of their lives.

HSBC Speak for Success Programme.
‘Sharing Session cum Awards Presentation Ceremany
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Enriching Learning
Opportunities

Industry attachments are an
essential component in the curricula
of our Higher Diploma and Degree
programmes, allowing students to
gain first-hand exposure of working in
the real world and thereby enhancing
their employability upon graduation.

In the 2018/19 academic year,
VTC students undertook industry
attachments in a wide range of
industries. Among them, some took
attachments in the Mainland, as
well as in countries such as France,
Japan, Singapore, Thailand and the
United Kingdom.

Various outbound exchange
programmes were also organised,
enabling around 7,000 students to
broaden their global perspective.
Some of them visited overseas
countries like Australia, Austria,
Canada, Norway and the United Arab
Emirates.
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Driving Cultural Diversity on
Campus

To help VTC students develop a
global mindset and increase their
exposure to cultural diversity, we
actively promote an international
culture and provide opportunities
for cultural exchange.

In the past year, non-local students
studying at the VTC or exchange
students came from Austria, Belgium,
India, Italy, Malaysia, New Zealand,
Philippines, Switzerland, Thailand, the
Netherlands, the United States and
the Mainland.

Our ongoing International Festival,
which serves as a networking and
ideas exchange platform for local

and visiting students, featured a
series of cultural activities throughout
the year across VTC campuses with
the support of various Consulates-
General. A new cohort of International
Student Ambassadors was also
appointed to provide valuable support
towards the internationalisation of
VTC.

R E AL H B

FAPITR G 1 B AR E B BRAE - (R L
ZHRBVICEAEERERE R
2T

BE—F ROANFABBERRR
KERMF - LA - EIR - BAR
FREE - HOM - FERE - WmL
Z=E - TR B RAM -

EZEREENIFT  RAEES
wmIBEREE] ARG AESE
REZVBENIRERLNTE - B
FREBEVICERRET BEH
2 -BMNTEEZEF —REERSL
R BEB RS RHIE -

59



60

Student Statistics
BAgZTER

Number of students of the VTC member institutions in 2018/19:

2018/19 /& VTC B EEHE A8 -

Member Institutions

BERE

Technologijcal and Higher Education
Institute of Hong Kong
EEEEHERRER

Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education,
Hong Kong Design Institute,

School of Business and Information Systems
EEEEHE SR  BENERT SR K
TrR&EEb

Youth College

BEBMk

Pro-Act Training and Development Centres
SHIFIERS O

Chinese Culinary Institute
RSB

Hotel and Tourism Institute

B 5 IR 2B

International Culinary Institute
B R BT 24 B3 it

Maritime Services Training Institute
sk Sl Feg==tid

Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge
= 8 B B

School for Higher and Professional Education

vy —avay 2 B9 =
B mSAE B

Integrated Vocational Development Centre
EAERERT O

Shine Skills Centres
BRSO

Total &A%

Types of Programmes RREEE

Pre-employment B Al

3,230

29,830

8,560

270

820

1,850

220

2,250

3,650

710

51,390

In-service Training £ B 1Z 3

380

65,280

4,630

10,880

1,090

2,740

1,140

4,160

95,610

2,380

5,480

510

194,280

Student Achievements and Awards
B4 R R EE 88 18

Applied Science
The Eighth Healthy Cooking Competition
e Champion
Anna CHAN Ka-yuk
Department of Applied Science, IVE (Kwai Chung)

Business
The Chin Family Personal Finance Ambassador Programme
e The Excellent Financial Education Project Bronze Award
HO Kwan-ming, CHAN Kit-fai, CHAN Ka-fung,
CHIU Bok-lim, YING Hangyu
Department of Business, IVE (Tuen Mun)
e The Excellent Financial Education Project Bronze Award
FUNG Wing-lung, KWONG Tsz-wai, LIP Ka-yan,
TSANG Hoiyan, LEUNG Kwan-ho
Department of Business, IVE (Haking Wong)

ACCA Hong Kong Business Competition 2018-19
e Creative Excellence Award, Merit Award and My Favourite
Team Award
CHEUNG Ho-man, KWAN Chi-chung, LAM Ka-yee,
LIN Chi-shing
Department of Business, IVE (Kwun Tong)
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Childcare, Elderly and Community
Services

Jockey Club UNESCO Hong Kong Association ‘Global
Citizenship Education’ Project

Second Runner-up (Tertiary Group)

CHAN Yiu-nam, HA Sung-fei, HO Ka-on, KAM Ming-wai,

LAM Chun-kit, LAM Kin-wang, LEE Ho-wai,

MOK Chiu-yiu, NG Hiu-fung, SO Chun-hei
Department of Childcare, Elderly and Community
Services, IVE (Sha Tin)

Samsung Solve for Tomorrow 2018

Second Runner-up

KAO Ching-hei, CHAN Ka-yi, YU Wing-sum,

CHAO Hin-ting, WONG Yan-nam

Department of Childcare, Elderly and Community
Services, IVE (Sha Tin)

Stanford Design Challenge Asia 2018

Most Popular Award

Eddie FUNG, Cherry LAW, NGAI Ka-tung, HO Chun-ngai

Department of Childcare, Elderly and Community
Services, IVE (Sha Tin)
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Sha Tin)

Culinary
The 12th Asian Culinary Exchange

Gold (Hot Cooking - Chicken)

CHOY Pui-man

Higher Diploma in Culinary Arts, CClI

Gold (Hot Cooking - Vegetables)

YIP Ming-wai

Intermediate Certificate in Chinese Cuisine, CClI
Gold (Dessert - Pastry)

Victoria YAU Wing-ki

Professional Certificate in Chinese Culinary Arts, CClI

Ningbo International Young Chefs Challenge

Gold (Plated Cold Appetiser)
Henry LEE Hon-fai
Diploma in European Cuisine, ICI
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Design
HKT Smart Living Awards 2018

Gold Award (Student Category) and Most Popular
Smart Living Design Award (Student Category)
Eric PANG Yuen, Allison TSE Man-yan,

Derek WONG Man-ngai, Pasu FAN Fu-shun
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI

Co-Living & Co-Working Environment - Social Innovation
Inventor Design Competition

Champion

Kinson LAW Tsz-kin, LI Fong-chi, LEUNG Sui-ching
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI

Hong Kong Young Fashion Designers’ Contest 2018
Champion

Walker CHAN Leo

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI
New Talent Award

YEUNG Shun-leong

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI
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The Second Greater China Smart Home Appliances Design
Competition
e Champion of Student Division (Hong Kong and Macau
Region)
SHUM Hau-cheung
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI
e Integrated Kitchen Appliances Innovation Award (Midea
Kitchen Appliances Division)
Cherry YIK Siu-fun
Department of Design, THEI

The 35th Hong Kong Watch and Clock Design Competition
(Student Group)
e Champion
LAM Yuet-wan
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI

The 20th Hong Kong Eyewear Design Competition (Student
Category)
e Champion
WONG Ka-yan
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI

Kam Fan Awards 2018

e Gold Student Award
Josephine WONG Wing-sze
Department of Design, THEi
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A & D Trophy Awards 2018

e Best of the Best Trophy Award and Best of Category —
Interior Design
Cynthia LAM Hiu-ching
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI

The 18th Footwear Design Competition Hong Kong
e Gold Award (Men’s Shoes)
e Silver Award (Children’s Shoes)

LEE Kam-hi

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

Rado Star Prize Hong Kong 2018
e Champion

Hattie CHAN

Department of Design, THEi

Hong Kong Smart Design Awards 2019

e Gold Award and Green Award
Marco HEUNG Tsz-hang
Department of Design, THEI
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> CATHAy PACIFIC 9%

ProfassionaJ Stream

Champian

g

DFA Hong Kong Young Design Talent Award 2018

CreateSmart Young Design Talent Special Award
SO Man-ching

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI
HKDI Young Design Talent Award

Juliette HO Long-sum

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI
Young Design Talent Special Mention Award
Ingrid HO Ying-suet, Carmen LI Lok-yiu
Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

Engineering
URA/IVE Innovative Design Competition 2018

Excellence Award and Most Innovative Award
FONG Ching, WONG Man-chi, CHUNG Kin-ho
Department of Construction, IVE (Tsing Yi)

HKIE Electronics Project Competition 2019

Second Runner-up (Tertiary Education)

YAN Po-fong, TONG Kam-chun, HO Chun-yu,

Natalie CHAU Ka-wing

Department of Engineering, IVE (Haking Wong)

Smart Technology Application (Tertiary Education)

KO Fuk-lun, LEUNG Tsun-yeung, NG Pak-hei, NG Yuk-lun
Department of Engineering, IVE (Sha Tin)

Information Technology
Cathay Pacific 24-Hour Hackathon 2018

Grand Prize, Champion of Professional Stream and
Most Popular Vote Award

LUI Wa-hong, CHENG Pok-hong, FU Tszfung,

MAK Chun-chung

Department of Information Technology, IVE (Sha Tin)

2018 £ DFA BB B ERT A €

s BIEEEBERABERE
BRI
HKDI B EE ML R AT E R

o BEBMBLTEHRBEFRS R
fa] B D
HKDI IFEE R REBFTER

o EFERAKERSE
RE - %%
HKDI B M FE REEFTE R

T%E

[BEE-F¥F| AISIEREERALE

2018

s XEFAREBEFRALBTE
TR BEXE - #RR
IVE (BK) BETER

2019 FEBEFTHEALE
o =F (%L%H%U)
- EIRE - MEE - ARA
|w(aﬁ ) TIER
o EERIRIERLE (F AR
SEM - 255 HRE - 2RI
IVE (PH) IR

e

2018 B =i %= 24 /B Hackathon

o Kif  BEHATVERHKIEMIER
BER  HEE - [ BHER
IVE (AP H) BB R

Sports
HSUHK Sports Invitation Game 2019 (Volleyball)

Champion (Men'’s Division)
VTC Men’s Volleyball Team
Champion (Women’s Division)
VTC Women'’s Volleyball Team

Hong Kong Football Association - Jockey Club Futsal Cup
(Schools Division)

Champion (Men’s Higher Education Division)
VTC Men’s Football Team

Most Valuable Player (Men’s Final)

LAW Ka-long

Faculty of Management and Hospitality, THEI

The 30th Joint College Judo Competition

Champion (Team Competition)

VTC Judo Team

Overall Championship

VTC Judo Team

Champion (Male -73kg Junior Grade)

TSE Tat-man

Department of Hospitality, IVE (Chai Wan)
Champion (Male -55kg Senior Grade)
CHEUNG Wai-lun

Department of Business, IVE (Tsing Yi)
Champion (Male -73kg Junior Grade)

LO Cheuk-ling

Department of Engineering, IVE (Tsing Yi)
Champion (Male -73kg Senior Grade)

PO Kin-sang

Department of Hospitality, IVE (Chai Wan)
Champion (Female -52kg Senior Grade)
WONG Ka-lee

Department of Hospitality, IVE (Chai Wan)
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Hong Kong Student Invitational Judo Competition 2019
e Champion (Male - 55kg Grade)

CHEUNG Wai-lun

Department of Business, IVE (Tsing Yi)
e Champion (Male - 60kg Grade)

CHEUNG Kai-hin

Department of Hospitality, IVE (Chai Wan)

Cross-Strait cum Hong Kong & Macau Judo Invitational
Tournament 2019
e Champion (Male -100kg Grade)

CHENG Tszfung

Department of Hospitality, IVE (Chai Wan)

SOEA Unified Schools Football League 2018

e Champion
HUSSAIN Abuzar, LAU Chung-him, TAM Yi-ching,
KABAKLI Kevin Umit
Youth College

Secondary School and Tertiary Institution Taekwondo
Competition 2019 (Female Light Middleweight)
e Champion

SO Sze-ting

Youth College (Kwai Fong)
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Dr Ng Tat-lun Memorial Outstanding
Students Award Scheme
Applied Science
e Kitty WU Ka-ling
Department of Applied Science, IVE (Chai Wan)

Business

e Claudia WONG Ka-wai
Department of Business,
IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

Childcare, Elderly and Community Services

e Janet LUK Ka-yi
Department of Childcare, Elderly and Community
Services, IVE (Sha Tin)

Design

e Edelweiss CHEUNG Tsz-yui
Department of Architecture, Interior and Product
Design, HKDI

Engineering
e Andy TANG Kai-shing

Department of Engineering, IVE (Tsing Yi)
e King WONG King-yip

Department of Engineering, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Hospitality
e Kenny HO Siu-ting
Higher Diploma in Culinary Arts, ICI

Information Technology
e Wilson LEE Wai-shun

Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Diploma of Vocational Education

e Michelle BUK Wing-sze
Diploma of Vocational Education (Fashion Textile
Design and Merchandising),
Youth College (Kwai Chung)
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STRENGTHENING BONDS
WITH ALUMNI

EEZERR

The unwavering support from our
alumni strengthens the development
of the VTC and the younger
generation, offering students
enriched training and educational
opportunities.

During the year, leaders of 20
Alumni Associations and over 1,600
alumni advocates have continuously
offered their time, expertise and

financial resources to support

our mentorship programmes and
professional seminars, as well as
providing industry attachments and
job opportunities for VTC students.

We have further engaged alumni
studying and working overseas, with
a view to building a sustainable
international alumni relationship and
expanding the VPET footprint.

VIC Bk —E A VIC MR EFMNE S
T T FE—RESTHEBRE -

FAR- 20 URREEMMERS 1,600
ZRRKEEB) VIC A & B M & &
EXMNE HBRKO)ZTHEXAH
iR TRMMARFTIHEES LI
E 2
BMERBBEAEBIIFERTHED
RE - EGEEEBERERRIEH <
BEHETHAENETBMERE -

DEVELOPING A CULTURE OF

EXCELLENCE
ZEHlX 1t

A highly competent human resources
network has always been at the
cornerstone of the VTC'’s sustainable
development. As at 31 March 2019,
we had a full-time workforce of 5,790
staff members, 3,620 of whom

were teaching and administrative
staff, along with 2,170 technical and
supporting staff.

Taking a proactive approach to
enhancing the capability of our
staff, we provided them with a
variety of development activities
and programmes, including study
tours, familiarisation tours, training
workshops, seminars and talks
covering topics such as Design
Thinking, Business Innovation and
Disruptive Technology.

For instance, the Tsinghua National
Study Tours in May and June 2018
provided staff members with an
opportunity to learn about the latest
developments in the Mainland. By
participating in various academic
exchanges, international conferences
and exhibitions, we were able to
stimulate innovation and co-creation
while enabling our staff to strengthen
their local and global networks.

EENEKRZVICEURERENE
A EHZE20194F3 311 VICH
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Promoting Knowledge
Sharing

The VTC is committed to promoting
knowledge sharing both within

the organisation and in the wider
community through digital platforms.
A digital workplace strategy, aligned
with our objectives and technological
priorities, has been introduced to
facilitate exchange of ideas and
improve collaboration among staff
members.

Outstanding Staff
Achievements

During the past year, ten staff
members received Long Service
Awards for their 35 years of dedicated
service to the VTC. In addition,

59, 132 and 103 staff members
respectively were commended for
having completed 30, 25 and 20
years of service.

Staff Excellence Awards

Having made recognised
contributions to the VTC through their
dedication, competence, ingenuity
and conscientious performance,

the following staff members and
teams were honoured with the Staff
Excellence Award:

e Mr Cyril CHU Ching-kwok
Lecturer, Student Development
Office, IVE (Chai Wan)

e Dr Martin YEUNG Wai-hong
Principal Student Development
Officer, Student Development
Office, IVE (Chai Wan)

Mr Arthur CHUNG Yau
Lecturer, Student Development
Office, IVE (Chai Wan)

Mr FONG Lai-kit

Physical Education Officer I,
Student Development Office,
IVE (Chai Wan)

Mr Patrick LAI Chi-keung
Student Development Officer,
Student Development Office,
IVE (Chai Wan)

Mr David SHIU Man-fung
Clerical Officer Il, Student
Development Office,

IVE (Chai Wan)

Mr Pierre LAU Wai-ping
Programme Manager, CCI

Mr Terry LAU Chikin

Chief Instructor, CClI

Mr CHAN Kai-hon

Chief Instructor, CCI

Mr CHAN Chun-hung

Chief Instructor, CClI

Mr LEUNG Kin-sum

Chief Instructor, CClI

Mr Peter CHAN Wing-cheung
Senior Instructor, CCI

Mr SHUM Yeuk-chun

Senior Instructor, CClI

Mr WAN Fuk-sing

Instructor, CCI

Mr CHAN Kam-sun
Instructor, CCI

Mr FAN Yuen-keung
Instructor, CClI

Mr CHOW Chi-ho

Attendant Il, Headquarters
(Industry Partnership)

Ms WONG Cho-ki

Executive Assistant I, Department
of Applied Science,

IVE (Kwai Chung)

Teaching Excellence Awards

The Teaching Excellence Award
recognises teachers' commitment
to providing quality VPET. Those
honoured for 2018 were:

e Ms Alice KWONG Nga-lai
Senior Lecturer, Department of
Childcare, Elderly and Community
Services, IVE (Sha Tin)

e Ms Eva AU Yee-man
Lecturer, Department of Childcare,
Elderly and Community Services,
IVE (Sha Tin)

e Mr Clive FONG Wai-to
Teaching Associate, Department
of Childcare, Elderly and
Community Services, IVE (Sha Tin)

e Miss Viola CHAN Siu-yung
Lecturer, Student Development
Office, IVE (Chai Wan)

e Ms Zoe CHENG Ming-wai
Lecturer, Student Development
Office, IVE (Chai Wan)

e Mr Andy LAM Ting-hin
Teaching Associate, Student
Development Office, Youth
College (Kwai Chung)

e Mr Matthew YAU Chi-shing
Teaching Associate, Student
Development Office, Youth
College (Kwai Chung)

e Ms Susan CHAN Shou-san
Teaching Fellow |, Faculty of
Management and Hospitality,
THEI (Chai Wan)

?&E%ﬂ g&:/\?

VICH N EBEBYE  ERBERE
M REBHNERT - HARRER
KRBT - 5| ABIBEREHE
REE T ZHNBRRMESE -

ETHERR

EXF RMBEERABREET A
VIC fR7#% 35 FMai%8 T : 5 4F 59
fi7 ~ 132 7 ) 103 i1 B T 5 Bl AR 7%
304 25 F 20 F - AEXKE -

et B T8

VICRRVHEEETHE  SfH#Es
SHERNREMER - ¥ T E
Eﬁﬂm XBREF MAABEE

- EE BEETREBKNT :

o KRIEELA
IVE (48) BAHEREE
EAT

o BEREL
IVE (48) BABRE
BESBLEEREM

o SELAE
IVE (%8) BEFRE
Eell

o HEKEA
IVE (%8) 24 ERR
—RBEEXM

o FEWAAL
IVE (&%) B2EERE
BARREFMT

o BWNIEKLA
IVE (%8) 24 %ERRE
“HRXE

e RBFEA
IR
AR AT

R A
R EERTEL
wHEE
BREVE &4
HREERTEL T
wmHyE g

PR 18 1 5 A
SEEE
BHEE
PREREE
HREERTEL A
mHyE g

PR K R 2 A
SEEE
=RHEE
DR A
HREERTEL AT
RRHEE
BEENE
e
HE8
PR # A&
HEERTEL T
HE
BRI LA
HREE R EL AT
HES
AERLEE
BER (1TEE1E)
ZHREBE
=R
IVE (328) EARIEZR
ZARATIER BN IR

VTC

CEEEE

TP TR ARSI A MBS - RIS HEE
BESAYENESER - 2018 38
EEEMT -

o EiTERELL
IVE (PH) h7E - RERLER
%%
=A% ERD
s BAELL
IVE ($A) 97 REREER
% &
EAT
s FIEELAE
IVE (PH) 97 REREEHR
%%
=S pid
e AOARLL
IVE (4£8) BABRE
&R
] @Bﬁﬂﬁﬁt

E%Eﬁ

o MEREA
EEER (28 EBEEER
2R

o MBFIRIA
FTEER (XF) B4XERE
HE)E

s REMLZ T
THEI (/&) 7 ROB & Ik e
EIEEf
—RAFEERD

2EHE
GRA UAﬂON
~ CEREMONY 2018




74

PROMOTING GOOD CORPORATE
CITIZENSHIP

REFLELRE

It is a shared responsibility of
our staff and students to devote
themselves to good corporate
citizenship.

The VTC received three awards
from Social Welfare Department for
volunteer services during the year,
including the Highest Service Hour
Merit Award (Public Organisations)
with nearly 225,000 service hours
contributed by 14,500 student and
staff volunteers. VTC was also
named first runner-up and second
runner-up in the Best Student and
Youth Volunteer Project Competition
(Tertiary Education).

In recognition of our endeavours

in caring for the community, our
employees and the environment, we
were also commended as a ‘10 Year
Plus Caring Organisation’ by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service.

Supporting Environmental
Protection

We have constantly been promoting
environmental awareness and
practices among our students and
staff. For example, the ICI has
adopted a hydroponic system for
educational purposes.

In addition, we launched the Kids’
Greenway: Biodiversity project under
the Environment and Conservation
Fund. With support from ten local
green organisations, this two-year
project is aimed at promoting green
education and green lives among
kindergarten teachers, students and
parents. The VTC was also one of
the co-organisers of the Hong Kong
Green School Award.
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Promoting Inter-
generational Harmony

To connect the younger and older
generations, a number of projects
promoting inter-generational harmony
were designed. For example, our
students designed a range of
furniture and products to facilitate
inter-generational co-living in their Co-
Senior+ project. Their creations were
showcased in an international design
event, the Salone Internazionale del
Mobile in Milan, Italy.

Another initiative was a ‘Storylab’
mobile application created to promote
inter-generational communication
through a digital life story-telling
platform, facilitating the sharing of
cultural inheritance, value education
and language acquisition. The
application reached the Asia Finals of
the Stanford Design Challenge 2018,
organised by the Stanford Center on
Longevity in the United States, and
received the Most Popular Award.
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS
= E R R B

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year 2018-19 presenting the operating results and financial
position of the Council and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the
year. Total income of HK$5,363.2M (2017-18: HK$5,158.8M) and
total expenditure of HK$5,045.5M (2017-18: HK$4,833.4M) were
reported.

Operating Results

Out of the total income of HK$5,363.2M, HK$3,347.6M was
Government subventions, HK$1,725.9M was tuition fees and
training charges, HK$289.7M was interest income, donation and
other income. As compared with 2017-18, the increase in income
was mainly attributed to the increase in Government subventions
largely for pay adjustments and increase in interest income.

Total expenditure of HK$5,045.5M incurred in the year included
staff expenses of HK$3,569.2M and other operating expenses
of HK$1,476.3M. The increase in expenditure was mainly due

to improvement to VTC buildings and facilities in supporting
teaching and learning, and increase in trainee allowances for VTC
Earn & Learn Scheme and Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of
Professional Parttime Programmes.

The Group as a whole achieved savings of HK$317.7M, reported as
surplus for the year 2018-19, of which HK$196.6M was transferred
to the Council’'s Reserves for implementation of new initiatives and
other developments.
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Building Programmes and Capital Items

For the year 2018-19, a total of HK$258.3M was incurred on
building programmes and capital items. These projects included
the construction of International Culinary Institute (ICl) in Pokfulam,
Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEI)
campus in Chai Wan, as well as other improvement projects.

Financial Statements

The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2019 are set out in the following pages.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BZ2019F5 3 A31HLELFENGZEEZEKER

INCOME

Government Subventions

Tuition Fees and Training Charges
Interest Income

Donations

Other Income

Total Income
EXPENDITURE

Staff Expenses

Fulltime Staff Expenses
Part-time Staff Expenses
Temporary Staff Expenses
Other Staff Expenses

Other Operating Expenses

Consumables, Equipment and Library Books
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses

Hire of Services and Professional Fees
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities

Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses

Staff Development and Visits
Interest Expenses
Other Expenses

Total Expenditure

SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

TRANSFER TO:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than ‘surplus for the year’ in either of the years presented. Therefore, the Group’s ‘total
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comprehensive income’ was the same as the ‘surplus for the year’ in both years.

BT [AFER%] I ARBREFFALLA L2 HKE R ARBERZEFEN [AFEAK] HER [2mPiagE] -

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
3,347,587 3,155,122
1,725,942 1,742,042
103,631 73,405
27,054 38,729
158,948 149,534
5,363,162 5,158,832
3,103,610 3,042,905
120,237 117,475
320,474 320,926
24,857 24,238
3,569,178 3,505,544
353,791 317,398
642,934 562,903
59,708 67,588
211,229 191,178
39,301 29,809
18,527 18,472
25,868 21,357
124,972 119,191
1,476,330 1,327,896
5,045,508 4,833,440
317,654 325,392
196,579 206,460
121,075 118,932
317,654 325,392

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

2019 3 A31 ANGEEEERR

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Loans to Staff

Deposits

Bank Deposits

CURRENT ASSETS
Loans to Staff

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other

Receivables
Bank Deposits
Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable within One Year
Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue

by the Vocational Training Council

on 29 August 2019

#2019 8 A 29 A
HBXIRBEFGHZREEER

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, BBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BEIRBER

#EEFiE+ , GBS, BBS, JP
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2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
4,211,206 4,304,682
952 432

7,234 8,638

- 1,229,000
4,219,392 5,542,752
465 386
172,352 131,462
4,085,800 3,984,577
1,422,044 166,827
5,680,661 4,283,252
1,289,380 1,383,774
402,346 408,283
44,652 41,990
308,694 311,872
2,045,072 2,145,919
3,635,589 2,137,333
7,854,981 7,680,085
11,163 8,377
433,035 476,224
1,844,831 1,947,186
2,289,029 2,431,787
5,565,952 5,248,298
354,553 369,881
5,211,399 4,878,417
5,565,952 5,248,298
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THE COUNCIL COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BEIRREES BXIRREEERENZES

As at 31 March 2019 AN OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES AND TRAINING BOARDS (as at 31 March 2019)
HZ 201943 A31H ZESRIIREZESHE (B2 2019F 3 A3108)
Chairman EE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL B%ijmBREEg

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, BBS, JP &5 F¥18+, GBS, BBS, JP Standing Committee B5Z 8 &
_ . Administration Committee {TIHZEZE €
Deputy Chairmen Bl EE

Audit Committee EZEZE &

84

Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Members

Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS
Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai

Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, BBS, MH
Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP
Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP
Mr Ronald LAM Siu-por

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH

Mr Clarence LEUNG Wang-ching, JP
Mr Kennedy LIU Tatyin

Ms LOW Khah-gek

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Ms Candy TAM Lai-chuen, MH
Mr Gary YEUNG Man-yui, MH

Dr Daniel YIP Chung-yin

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)

Mr Rex CHANG Wai-yuen, JP

Commissioner for Labour (or his representative)

Mr Carlson CHAN Ka-shun, JP

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or her representative)

Ms Salina YAN Mei-mei, JP

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council

Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

EAFE Li2A0 , BBS, JP
B S EBAHIR , JP

£8

BRIES 25 , BBS

PR & B LA
HEERZISE A | BBS, MH
HERZL, P
EEH LT

BB IE & TH2A0 , JP
AR S
BRI E , MH
RRIESFE , IP
BEBLE

EILELZ+

HERLE
EBE T, MH
B3R5 A, MH
EhBEELT
HEREMERE (HEAR)
EEJR A, JP
BIERER (HERR)
fR3z{s 4, JP
TEEZEFEER (HEREK)
EEM AL, JP
BEIRBAITHS
TE2XEEL, GBS, JP

Estates Committee EXEIELZE &
Finance Committee Bf 75 ZE 5 &

Training Boards

JIREES

Accountancy Training Board

BRI RIREES

Apprenticeship Training Board

BRIREES

Automobile Training Board

MEXIREER

Banking and Finance Training Board
RITREMEIREE S

Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board
EREEREXIRES S

Building, Civil Engineering and Built Environment Training Board
BE - IATRERERRRIREE S

Chinese Culinary Institute Training Board
HEFZEBRJIREER

Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board
BEIRXIREES

Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board
BEFREMXIIREES

Fashion and Textile Training Board
RERGBXIREE S

Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board

BIE - KR RIREXIIREE R
Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board
HARRSEEIREER

Innovation and Technology Training Board

A RMEGIREE &

Insurance Training Board
REFIREER

Jewellery, Watch and Clock Training Board
KEREREIIREER

Management and Supervisory Training Board
ERRBEI)REES

Manufacturing Technology Training Board
SLUER R FIIRER S

Maritime Services Training Board
BERGEIREZEER

Media and Communications Training Board
BREREAXIIREER

Print Media and Publishing Training Board
ENRmIgR R R EIREE &

Real Estate Services Training Board
EHERBEIREE S

Retail Trade Training Board
ZEXIREES®

Security Services Training Board
REBRGEIREES

Transport and Logistics Training Board
BHERYRFIREER

Vocational Training Board for People with Disabilities

ERATREIRZR S
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BEXIRFEEERENEZES

STANDING COMMITTEE
EHEES

Chairman
Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, BBS, JP
Members

Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH

Mr Kennedy LIU Tatyin

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Dr Joseph LEE, GBS, JP

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Rex CHANG Wai-yuen, JP

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Ms Joyce YUEN Tszyin

EE
L= F1E L, GBS, BBS, JP
£B8

=R TT2AD, BBS, JP

BRERAZGR , JP

©EBE LT

2RI AE , MH

HERSLAE

ZR{EE L, GBS, JP

HEREMERE (FEARR)
EERST A, IP

BEIRBATHSE
LTEBREFEL, GBS, JP

BITZS
Bt ¥ A&t

COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BXIRFEEERENEES

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
THRZEES

Chairman
Mr Kennedy LIU Tatyin
Members

Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH

Ms Candy TAM Lai-chuen, MH

Dr Daniel YIP Chung-yin

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Rex CHANG Wai-yuen, JP

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Mr Kent CHEUNG Wai-kin
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES

BEIREEEERBINERES

AUDIT COMMITTEE
BEREES

Chairman
Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Members

Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP
Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai
Mr Kennedy LIU Tatyin
Dr Stella KWAN Mun-yee

ESTATES COMMITTEE

EXEBELZET
Chairman

Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Members

Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS

Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai

Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, BBS, MH

Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Director of Architectural Services (or her representative)
Mrs Sylvia LAM YU Ka-wai, JP

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Ir Augustus LEE Yuen-fai
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BERAEUR , JP
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PR B BT A
HEZISE A, BBS, MH
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BEEER (FEARR)
MERRELZ L, JP
BEIRBAITHSE

TEXREEL, GBS, JP

ETZE
FRBITIZAD

COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES

BEIREEEERBINERES

FINANCE COMMITTEE
MBEES

Chairman
Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP
Members

Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, BBS, MH

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP

Mr Clarence LEUNG Wang-ching, JP

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Rex CHANG Wai-yuen, JP

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Ms Karen CHAN Ka-lin
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Accountancy Training Board

SHXIREES

Chairman
Mr Terence CHEUNG Kwong-tat
Members

Mr Morison CHAN Chi-kong

Prof Peter CHENG Shu-tong (up to 31 August 2018)

Prof Stella CHO LUNG Pui-lan

Ms Faith Corazon DEL ROSARIO

Mr George HO Kwok-wah, MH

Dr Angus HO Shu-keung

Dr Shirley KAN FU Mee-yuk

Mr Nelson LAM Chi-yuen

Ms Lois LAM Lee-kwan

Mr Richard LAW Cho-wa

Mr Jacky LEE Kin-ming

Mr Roy LO Wa-kei

Dr Danny WAN Tak-fai

Ms Fanny WONG

Mr Bernard WU Tak-lung

Ms Karmen YEUNG Ka-yin

Mr Derrick YIP Siu-ming

Director of Accounting Services (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Apprenticeship Training Board
ERIREES

Chairman
Mr Edmond LAI Wing-kok
Members

Dr CHEUNG Wai-leung

Mr Daniel FUNG Man-kit

Mr HO Chun-yan

Mr David LEUNG Yiu-fai

Mr Micky LEUNG

Mr LEUNG Ping-him

Mr Dennis NG Kwok-on

Mr NG Kwong-king

Ms Polly PANG Ka-yi

Ms Louisa TONG Po-chu

Ms Wenda WONG Wing-chi

Secretary for Education (or his / her representative)

Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services
(or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Automobile Training Board

AEXIREES

Chairman
Mr Wilson LAM Kit
Members

Mr Mark CHAN Siu-fai
Mr CHOI Kong-wei
Mr LAM Hing-cheong
Mr LAM Tin-fu
Mr LIU Keung
Mr MOU Yun-nin
Mr NG Chiu-man
Ir Madison TANG Wing-hong
Ir Dr TONG Kwok-kei
Mr Alen WONG Ka-lun
Mr Caris YUAN Kin-yu
Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services
(or his / her representative)
Director of Environmental Protection (or his / her representative)
Commissioner for Transport (or his / her representative)
Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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BHREBER (HHRE)
BRBEE (AHAR)
BIRER (RHRE)
BEIRBHTHE (HHRK)

TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Banking and Finance Training Board
RITREMEIREZEES

Chairman
Mr David KWOK Sek-chi
Members

Ms Lisa CHENG Pik-ling

Mr Gary CHEUNG

Mr Steve CHIU Siu-po

Ms Marianne CHUNG Lai-kuen

Mr Mark FAN Wai-man

Prof FONG Wai-ming

Mr Brian FUNG Wei-lung

Mr Johnny LAU Ho-yin

Mr Anthony Ward RUSHTON

Ms Jennifer SHUM Wan-ling

Ms Doris TONG Shuet-kiu

Dr Chris TSE Yue-hong

Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(or his / her representative)

Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(or his / her representative)

Chairman of the Securities and Futures Commission
(or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board

XERREEXIREES

Chairman

Mr PANG Kam-chiu
Vice-Chairlady

Ms Juliana YANG Hui-chun
Members

Ms Sindy CHAN Mei-heung

Ms Elaine CHEUNG

Ms CHEUNG Soo-kan

Mr Orpheus CHOY

Ms Doris FU Ka-yin

Mr Joseph HO Shiu-chung

Ms Amy HUI Wai-fung

Ms Cecilia KUK Ling-chun

Mr Jeff LAM Shue-yan

Ms April LAU Yuk-tong

Ms LI Yuk-mei

Mr LUl Kwan

Ms Shelly LUK Wai-fong

Ms Elsa PUN Pui-fun

Ms Cinthia TAM

Mr Roger TANG Wai-fu

Mr WU Kam-tong

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Chief Executive of Consumer Council (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Building, Civil Engineering and Built Environment Training Board

BE CIAIBRRERRBRERIREES

Chairman
Mr Eddie LAM Kin-wing
Members

Ir Allan CHAN Sau-kit

Mr Stanley CHEN Chi-keung

Ir Wilson CHEUNG Yiu-sun

Ir Prof CHUA Hong

Cr Paul CHUNG Koon-man

Ms Linda HO Wai-ping

Mr IP Kai-yin

Mr KWOK Tung-keung

Mr MARK Chin-yiu

Sr Dr Peter NG Yau-yee

Mr Edward SHEN

Mr Kyran SZE, MH

Cr TANG Chi-wang

Mr Alfred TANG Yu-chi

Ir Prof Leslie George THAM

Sr WONG Kwok-leung

Mr WONG Ping

Secretary for Development (or his / her representative)

Director of Buildings (or his / her representative)

Director of Housing (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Chinese Culinary Institute Training Board
FEHFEERIREZEER

Chairlady

Ms Monica LEE-MULLER
Vice-Chairman

Mr YEUNG Wai-sing, BBS, MH
Members

Mr AU Kwok-keung

Mr CHAN Chun-kit

Ms Lily CHAN Kar-wah

Mr Keven CHAN Tin-yau

Ms CHOI Mei-mei

Mr HUNG Chung-hing

Mr Lawrence KOO Kin-yip

Mr KWOK Wang-hing

Mr Wilson LEE Po-lam

Mr LEE Yuen-hong

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, SBS, BBS, JP, KSJ
Dr LI Sheng-tao (up to 8 May 2018)
Mr WONG Wing-keung

Mr Wilson WU Wai-tsuen

Mr YAU Kam-wing

Secretary for Labour and Welfare (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board

KEIRXIREZEES

Chairman
Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, BBS, MH
Members

Ir CHAN Hing-keung

Ir Frankie CHAN Wai-ping

Mr CHAN Yun-fu

Ir CHUNG Chi-ming

Dr CHUNG Wai-nang

Dr HUI Chun-man

Ir Dr KWAN Chung-ming

Mr LAl Kam-to

Mr LAl Wah-hing

Ir David LAU Lee-nin

Mr Anthony LAU Siu-hung

Mr Calvin LEE Yiu-chung

Mr David Grant MURPHY

Ir Chris TING Tsan-kau

Ir WAI Yip-kin

Ir WU Chi-fai

Ir Tony YEUNG Kwong-tung

Mr YU Hing-wai

Mr YIU Chow-leung

Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services
(or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board

EFRENXIREES

Chairman

Mr Johnny YEUNG Chi-hung, MH
Vice-Chairman

Dr LAM Hiu-fung

Members

Dr Stephen CHAN Wing-chi

Mr Victor CHOI

Mr Steve CHUANG Tsu-hsiung

Mr HO Kam-fai

Mr Sam HUI Kin-sang

Dr Measure HUNG Kim-fung

Mr Myron KWAN Man-lung

Ms KWOK Sau-mui

Mr LAM Yam-sui

Prof MOW Wai-ho

Ir Dr Vincent NG To-yee

Ir PANG Chun-bong

Dr Lawrence POON Chi-kin

Mr S| Dik-kwong

Dr WONG Chun

Ir Dr YIU Hing-leung

Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services
(or his / her representative)

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Director-General of Communications (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Fashion and Textile Training Board
FERGEBEXIREES

Chairman
Mr Benjamin LAU Man-tung
Members

Mr Nicholas CHAN Ying-kit

Mr Sam CHEN Tong-sang

Ms Anne CHEUNG Suen-fei

Mr Danny CHEUNG Sun-kit

Ms Joanne CHOW

Prof HU Jin-lian

Dr David HUI Cheung-wing

Mr Matthew LAl Kin-hon

Mr Roger LEE Kuo-chuan

Dr Roger NG Keng-po

Ms Jacqueline NG Wai-kwan

Mr Spike NGAI Chi-man

Ms Linda TSANG Chi-man

Mr Terence WONG Kwok-sing

Mr Wallace WONG Pok-man

Mr William WONG Wai

Mr Kenny YANG

Mr Clement YOUNG Sheung-ching

Mr Andrew YU Yau-kuen

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board
BE - -ARBRREXIREZEES

Chairman

Mr David UDELL

Vice-Chairman

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, SBS, BBS, JP, KSJ
Members

Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai
Ms Sarah CHAN Yuiyan
Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
Mr Marco CHEUNG Chi-fai
Mr Lawrence KOO Kin-yip
Ms Rebecca KWAN

Dr Patricia LEAHY, BBS
Mr Damien LEE Tang-hoi
Dr Paul LEUNG Kin-hang
Mr Wallace LI Chin-hung
Ms Liza NG Shiow-lan

Mr Marco PELLIZZER

Mr Wilson WU Wai-tsuen
Ms Brenda YAU

Mr YAU Tik-wai

Mr YIU Pak-leung, MH

Mr Joseph YUNG

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)
Commissioner for Tourism (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council

(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board

HAORSBBXEIREZES

Chairman

Mr Brian SUN
Vice-Chairman

Mr Wilson LEE Kwong-ching
Members

Mr CHAN Lap-tak

Ms Florence FUNG Ka-pik

Mr Michael LAU Ting-chi

Mr Eddie LEE

Mr Vincent MA Wai-hung

Mr Eric NG

Ms SHUM Tszyiu

Ms Susan SIU Kit-ling

Mr Kriston SUN Yung-heng

Mr Thomas WONG Cheung-chi

Mr William WONG Lung-sheung

Mr Byron WONG Tsz-wan

Prof Christina YU Wai-mui

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Innovation and Technology Training Board

AFERBRIREES

Chairman
Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong
Members

Dr Edward CHAN Kwok-man

Mr Raymond CHAN Wai-fung

Mr CHENG Chung-ngam

Mr Raymond CHENG Siu-hong

Dr Lawrence CHEUNG Chi-chong

Mr Argon HO

Dr Measure HUNG Kim-fung

Dr Alex KAI Sze-fai

Dr KWONG Kwok-wah

Mr Robert LAI

Mr Savio LAl

Mr LEE King-chung

Mr LEUNG Yip-hung

Prof Helen MENG Mei-ling

Ms Gracie NG

Ir Dr George SZE Lee-wah

Dr WONG Chung-kiu, MH

Mr Cedric YEUNG Chun-lam

Ir Peter YEUNG Tin-chung

Government Chief Information Officer (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Innovation and Technology
(or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Insurance Training Board

RBEIREES

Chairlady
Mrs Agnes KOON WOO Kam-oi, MH
Members

Ms Charity AU

Mr Patrick CHAN Chi-kong

Mr Herman CHEUNG Chi-fai

Mr Eric HUI

Mr Kevin KO Ka-lok

Mr Dominic LAM Wai-kuen, MH

Mr LAU Chun-pong

Ms Maggie LEE Mo-kit

Mr LEE Mun-nang

Dr Tony LEE

Prof LI Jing-yuan

Mr MA Chun-kei

Ms Helen ROBERTS

Mr Allan YU Kin-nam

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Chief Executive Officer of the Insurance Authority
(or his / her representative)

Managing Director of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Jewellery, Watch and Clock Training Board
hEREGKFXIREZEES

Chairman
Dr Dennis NG Wang-pun, BBS, MH
Members

Mr CHAN Wing-yun

Mr Max CHEUNG Wah-hing
Mr CHOW Ka-keung

Mr KOO Tong-fat

Mr Enders LAM Wai-hung
Dr Adam LAU

Dr Kevin LAU Kin-wah, JP
Mr LAW Chi-kwong

Mr Samuel LEE Wing-on
Ms Irene LEUNG Wing-yan
Mr LO Chung-fai

Mr Michael SZE Ho-yin

Mr WONG Kam-lung

Mr Victor YIU Wai-yin

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Management and Supervisory Training Board

EEREBEEIREES

Chairman
Dr Kevin LAU Kin-wah, JP
Members

Ms Christina CHAN Shuk-han

Mr CHEUNG Kit

Mr Philip CHIU Chi-kie

Mr Jonathan FONG Tim-fai

Dr Joyce IUN Sio-kun

Dr Stephen KO Chi-chung

Mr Gary LAU Sun-tao

Ms Eva LEUNG Yuk-ling

Mr David LI Chi-ming

Mr Peter MOK Wah-fun

Mr David TING Tit-cheung, MH

Dr Danny WAN Tak-fai

Ms Virginia WILSON

Ms Angie YU Chi-ping

Representative of the Civil Service Training and Development
Institute, Civil Service Bureau

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Manufacturing Technology Training Board

HENREIREZEES

Chairman
Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tat-choi
Members

Mr Alfred AU Kit-ho

Mr Felix CHOI Chun-kit

Mr John CHOW Hon-kong
Dr CHUNG Sai-wing

Mr Vincent KONG Hon-po
Mr Frankie LAl Chun-yu
Prof David LAM Chuen-chun
Ir Thomas LEE Kwok-keung
Mr LEE Yuen-fat

Mr LEUNG Chun-sing

Mr Andy NG Ka-ho

Mr NG Ping-hong

Mr Warren SUN Yung-liang
Mr Calvin TAN Che-keung
Dr TSUI Chi-pong

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Maritime Services Training Board

BERBEXIREES

Chairlady
Ms Sabrina CHAO Sih-ming
Members

Mr Joseph CHAU Din-ming

Mr Demen CHEUNG Kwok-wai

Capt CHOI Leung-pei

Mr David COOGANS

Mr FAN Keung

Ms Bobo FUNG

Mr Jackson LAU Wai-cheong

Mr Marso LAW Kwun-pan

Mr Timothy LEE Kwok-lam

Capt Lothair LAM Ming-fung

Dr Kelvin PANG Ka-liong

Ms TONG Ka-lee

Mr TSANG Man-ching, BBS

Capt WONG Kam-fai (up to 14 October 2018)

Capt WU Kwok-hau

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Director of Marine (or his / her representative)

Commissioner of Police (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Media and Communications Training Board
HERERREANXIREES

Chairlady
Ms Bianca MA Kin-san
Members

Mr CHAN Kai-to

Mr DAI Chi-kit

Ms Celine HO

Mr Keith KAM Woon-ting, BBS

Mr Peter KUO Yiu-kwan

Mr Ross LAl

Ms Winnie LAU Wing-yee (up to 30 June 2018)

Ir Wicky LAW Man-hoi

Mr LEE King-chung

Dr Will MA Wai-kit

Ms SHAM Yee-lan

Mr Edgar SO Kai-chi

Ms Tammy TAM Wai-yi

Ms Ruby WAN

Prof Mike WONG Ka-fai

Ms WONG Shuk-ming

Mr WONG Wing-hang

Mr Kenny YIU

Mr Patrick YU Kin-wah

Director of Broadcasting (or his / her representative)

Director of Information Services (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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Print Media and Publishing Training Board
BREEBREREIREES

Chairman
Mr Jackson LEUNG Siu-yin
Vice-Chairman

Dr Elvin LEE Ka-kui, JP
Members

Mr CHAN Chung-yung
Mr Dicky CHOY Wing-chiu
Mr Corey HO Kin-wa
Dr Ken HO Wai-kuen
Mr Maurice KWAN
Mr LEUNG Ka-kei
Mr NG King-fai
Mr Thomas NG Wang-kuen
Ms Brenda PANG On-kei
Mr SIT Saiyu
Mr Andery SZETO Tak-wai
Mr Peter TSE Po-tak
Mr Ivan TSOI Yiu-ming
Dr Sharon WONG Yin-yue
Mr Patrick YEUNG Kwok-keung
Director of Government Logistics (or his / her representative)
Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his / her representative)
Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)
Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Real Estate Services Training Board

EHERBXIREES

Chairman

Sr Augustine WONG Ho-ming, JP
Vice-Chairman

Dr Edmond CHENG Kam-wah
Members

Sr Dr Lennon CHOY Hung-tat

Mr Waillen CHUI Wai-lan

Dr Lobo FUNG Kwok-hung

Sr Prof Daniel HO Chi-wing

Mr Ellis IP Chi-ming

Mr Anthony KWOK Chong

Mr KWONG Chi-fai

Sr Alexander LAM Tsan-wing

Sr Andrew LEE Chun-lai

Sr LOU Kuong-fai

Mr POON Tat-hang

Sr Victor SUNG Shu-hung

Mr TIN Sio-un

Director of Buildings (or his / her representative)

Director of Housing (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Chief Executive Officer of the Estate Agents Authority
(or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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Retail Trade Training Board
ZEXIRZEES

Chairlady

Dr Stella KWAN Mun-yee
Vice-Chairlady

Ms Winnie CHOW Wai-yee
Members

Ms Ada CHAN

Ms Albe CHOI Pui-shan
Mr lan CHQY Jing-man

Dr Dominic CHU Chun-ho
Mr CHUNG Kwok-wing
Ms Michelle NG Lai-shan
Ms Janis TAM Kam-yee
Mr TSOI Chung-kin

Ms Emily WONG Ka-yi
Mrs Mabel WONG FAN Chih-wing
Mr YIP Cheuk-tak

Ms Ruth YU Lai-yiu

Chief Executive of the Consumer Council (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
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Security Services Training Board
RZBRBEIREES

Chairlady
Ms Jane Curzon LO, JP
Members

Dr Johnnie CHAN Chikau, BBS, JP

Mr FUNG Ping-yan

Mr Jack IP Kin-man

Mr KUNG Ngan-hung

Dr KWONG Tsz-man

Mr Eddie LAM Koon-fu

Mr LEUNG Mok-kwan

Mr LI Pui-lam

Ms Dennis TANG Ming-tan

Mr Terence YAP Wing-khai

Mr YIP Chun-nam, BBS, MH, JP

Director of Housing (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Commissioner of Police (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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Transport and Logistics Training Board
BEMRYREIREES

Chairman
Ir Dr David HO Chi-shing, JP
Members

Ms Lily CHENG Yuen-chi

Dr Lewis CHEUNG Ting-on

Mr Eddie CHO Chi-cheong

Mr Gilbert FENG Jia-pei

Ms Donna KONG Sau-han

Mr KUO Wen4ung (up to 31 May 2018)

Mr Frosti LAU Yi-sau

Dr Francis LEUNG Kit-nam

Mr LEUNG Tak-hing (up to 10 July 2018)

Ms Alice LUI Yuen-nga

Dr Isaac NG Ka-Chui

Ms Kelly TAM

Dr Alex TANG Wai-chung

Mr Lu WONG Ho-leung (up to 26 June 2018)

Mr Eric WONG Man-sum

Mr WONG Shun-yee, MH (up to 8 April 2018)

Mr YAP Thian-chai

Mr YEUNG Lin-pik

Commissioner for Transport (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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TRAINING BOARDS
dREER

Vocational Training Board for People with Disabilities

BRATREIREZES

Chairman

Mr CHEUNG Kin-fai, MH
Vice-Chairman

Dr James Joseph LAM, BBS, JP
Members

Dr Doris CHONG Yin-kei (up to 30 June 2018)

Ir Dr David HO Chi-shing, JP

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP

Mr KUO Chun-chuen

Ms LAM Tsui-wa

Mr Michael LIANG Chi-tsou

Mr Alan TAM Ming-tak

Mr Chester TSANG Wing-cheong

Mr Steven TSOI Wing-ming

Ms Elaine WU Siu-ling

Secretary for Education (or his / her representative)

Secretary for Labour and Welfare (or his / her representative)

Director of Social Welfare (or his / her representative)

Commissioner for Labour (or his / her representative)

Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council
(or her representative)
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF
THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL

BEIRDEERE

As at 31 March 2019

HZE 201993 A31H Council

BEg

Council Committees
BEeB TXZES

Executive Director
HITHE

Deputy Executive Director (A)
ElFTHE (A)

Deputy Executive Director (B)
ElFHIT®E (B)

Deputy Executive Director (C)
ElFIT®HE (C)

Deputy Executive Director (D)

B THE (D)
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Legend:

Principal, School President, Head, Senior Principals, Principals, Principal, Principal, Head,

Director, General Assistant Head, Head, Senior Principal, Director, Director, Director, Director, Senior Head, Head, Head, Director,
for Higher and Technological Information Assistant IVEs & HKDI Youth College  Youth College School of Estates, Maritime Manager, Executive Central Centre for Assistant HTI / CCl / ICI Vocational Institutional International Quality Assistant Finance and Human Internal Audit External
Professional and Higher Technology Executive > =me International Business and Health Services Qualifications Director (HQIP), Services Learning Executive 3 b Training for Advancement Development Assurance and Executive Supplies Resources Unit Relations
; : ) ) FBEE FFER ) b Y ; TBIE R ; 4 ! o ) )
Education Education Services Director, zap BE FEap Information and Safety Training Framework Office of the Division and Director, Y People with Office Office Accreditation Director, Division Division e Office
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Notes:

CCl: Chinese Culinary Institute /2 EfEh a7

HKDI: Hong Kong Design Institute 75123851205

HTI: Hotel and Tourism Institute ;& /5 & ik 220

ICI: International Culinary Institute B[R BFELEpE

IVE: Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education &5 H ¥ 5 &6

1) Pro-Act Training and Development Centres and Vocational Development Programme Office are under the purview of the Youth College.
2) Integrated Vocational Development Centres are under the purview of the Headquarters (Industry Partnership).
3) Shine Skills Centres are under the purview of Vocational Training for People with Disabilities Office.
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For enquiries &) External Relations Office
Vocational Training Council
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Address it VTC Tower, 27 Wood Road
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
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Website 483k http://www.vtc.edu.hk
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

= E R B

Consolidated Financial Statements

Following the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in Hong
Kong, the Vocational Training Council (the Council) has prepared
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year 2018-19 presenting
the operating results and financial position of the Council and its
subsidiaries (the Group) of the year. A total income of HK$5,363.2M
(2017-18: HK$5,158.8M) and total expenditure of HK$5,045.5M
(2017-18: HK$4,833.4M) were reported.

Operating Results
As compared with 2017-18, the increase in the Group’s income was

mainly attributed to the increase in Government subventions largely
for pay adjustments and increase in interest income.

The increase in expenditure was mainly due to improvement to
VTC buildings and facilities in supporting teaching and learning,
and increase in trainee allowances for VTC Earn & Learn Scheme
and Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time
Programmes.

The operating results of the major activities in 2018-19 are set out
in the paragraphs below.

Consolidated Income (2018-19)
2018-19F ERE WA
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Consolidated Expenditure (2018-19)
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Activities Financed by Government Recurrent Subventions

Total income for the year 2018-19 amounted to HK$3,749.7M,
of which HK$2,790.1M was recurrent subventions from the
Government, HK$785.9M from tuition fees and training charges,
and HK$173.7M from bank interest and other income. Total
expenditure for 2018-19 amounted to HK$3,553.1M. The savings
of HK$196.6M was transferred to the Council's Reserves for
implementation of new initiatives and other developments.

Activities Financed by Other Specific/Government Grants

In addition to the Government's subventions, the Council
successfully obtained grants under a number of specific/
Government Funds. These mainly included the VTC Earn & Learn
Scheme, Manpower Development Scheme, Pilot Subsidy Scheme
for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes, Construction
Industry Council Incentive Programme to enhance the Apprenticeship
Scheme for Electrical and Mechanical Industry, Pilot Programme on
Enhancing Talent Promotion and Training for Insurance Sector and
Project JUMP. Total income for the year amounted to HK$256.5M
and expenditure amounted to HK$264.1M.

Self-financing Activities

In 2018-19, the Group ran its self-financing activities mainly through
the operation of the VTC School of Business and Information
Systems (SBI), VTC School for Higher and Professional Education
(SHAPE), Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge

(PEAK), Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong
(THEI) and Integrated Vocational Development Centre (IVDC). Total
income generated from the self-financing activities for the year was
HK$1,090.2M and total expenditure incurred was HK$959.5M.

Building Programmes and Capital Items

For the year 2018-19, a total of HK$258.3M was incurred on
building programmes and capital items. These projects included the
construction of International Culinary Institute (ICl) in Pokfulam, THEi
campus in Chai Wan as well as other improvement projects.

Retirement Schemes

Other than the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (MPFS) set up
under the Hong Kong MPFS Ordinance, the Council’s retirement
schemes also included the VTC Provident Fund Scheme (1999). The
scheme was registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance and granted exemption pursuant to the MPFS Ordinance.

New Technology Training Fund

New Technology Training Fund (the Fund) was established by the
Government to finance the New Technology Training Scheme (the
Scheme). The Council administers the Scheme and holds the Fund
on trust for the Government. The balance of revenue fund as at 31
March 2019 was HK$1.9M.

The Reindustrialisation and Technology Training Programme (RTTP)
was launched in August 2018. The RTTP, covering the objectives
of the Fund to subsidise local enterprises to train staff on advance
manufacturing technologies, would substitute the functions of

the Fund. Upon the launch of the RTTP, the Fund was terminated
and ceased to receive applications. The balance of the Capital
and Revenue Funds would be returned to the Government upon
completion of necessary audit and financial procedures under the
Trust Deed.

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, BBS, JP
Chairman
29 August 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE COUNCIL MEMBERS OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL

HEXIREEEEZENHIRHMES

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the
Vocational Training Council (the Council) and its subsidiaries (the
Group) set out on pages 7 to 72, which comprise the consolidated
and Council balance sheets as at 31 March 2019, the consolidated
and Council statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated
and Council statements of changes in fund balances and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and of
the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2019 and of
the Group’s consolidated financial performance and the Council’s
financial performance and the Group’s consolidated cash flows

for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (HKSAs) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the Council Members for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Council members are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal
control as the Council members determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council
members are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Council members either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 18 of the Vocational
Training Council Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council members.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council members’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Council members regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 August 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHE2019F3A31HLELFENRFELEKER

Note 2019 2018
Bt HK$’000 HK$’'000
INCOME WA
Government Subventions HEwEEE 4 3,347,587 3,155,122
Tuition Fees and Training Charges BENEEER 5 1,725,942 1,742,042
Interest Income FIEWA 103,631 73,405
Donations B 6 27,054 38,729
Other Income HAA 7 158,948 149,534
Total Income LNt 5,363,162 5,158,832
EXPENDITURE X
Staff Expenses ETMX 8
Fulltime Staff Expenses 2HBETHY 3,103,610 3,042,905
Part-time Staff Expenses REBEIHRY 120,237 117,475
Temporary Staff Expenses EIRETEY 320,474 320,926
Other Staff Expenses HMWETHY 24,857 24,238
3,569,178 3,505,544
Other Operating Expenses Hin & ERX
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books EREMYR  REREE 353,791 317,398
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses ReREhEBRERX 642,934 562,903
Hire of Services and Professional Fees BHXRKER 59,708 67,588
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities B4 BEREEREE 211,229 191,178
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses smEES —RESEEL 39,301 29,809
Staff Development and Visits ETIEZIR AR 18,527 18,472
Interest Expenses FEBRX 19 25,868 21,357
Other Expenses Hibp s 124,972 119,191
1,476,330 1,327,896
Total Expenditure gt 5,045,508 4,833,440
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FEERRR2EANGRAE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 9 317,654 325,392
TRANSFER TO: ERE
Reserves HiEe 11 196,579 206,460
Specific and Other Funds BERABRREMES 12 121,075 118,932
317,654 325,392

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,
the Group’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRT [AFERER N AEERERFALRIBEEME2ENRE  BRTIEERZEFENAFERSK | HER[2EHRELZE] -

The notes on page 14 to page 72 form an integral part of these financial statements.
SIENE14EERE T2 B2 WA RRIBHREKZ —&B5 °



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE2019F3A31BLFENE2EKRER

Note 2019 2018
MaE HK$’000 HK$'000
INCOME A
Government Subventions B fEBIE 4 3,332,163 3,135,789
Tuition Fees and Training Charges BENREEER 5 862,329 895,014
Interest Income FIE WA 89,460 63,289
Donations B 6 47,368 36,923
Other Income Htg A 7 323,516 319,897
Total Income WA %R 4,654,836 4,450,912
EXPENDITURE X
Staff Expenses BTIMX 8
Fulltime Staff Expenses 2HBETHY 2,711,537 2,643,968
Parttime Staff Expenses FEBEIRX 41,293 43,006
Temporary Staff Expenses GEETIRY 284,529 290,318
Other Staff Expenses HMWETHY 22,800 22,191
3,060,159 2,999,483
Other Operating Expenses Hir&#8Mx
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books HEMNS  REREE 329,649 296,426
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses REFHEREBERERX 610,021 554,773
Hire of Services and Professional Fees HERKEA 49,734 54,971
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities B4 BEHNEE 195,652 173,538
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses ZmEES —RESSHEY 39,233 29,809
Staff Development and Visits ETEIR AR 16,049 15,699
Interest Expenses FERX 19 25,868 21,357
Other Expenses Hihpx 100,373 95,022
1,366,579 1,241,595
Total Expenditure S HALE 4,426,738 4,241,078
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TEERRR2ANREE
FOR THE YEAR 9 228,098 209,834
TRANSFER TO: ERE:
Reserves FHiES 11 196,579 206,460
Specific and Other Funds BERERAEMES 12 31,519 3,374
228,098 209,834

The Council had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,
the Council s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRTY [ NFERSIN BARERFRLREHMEZERS  AUBRATRZEFENAFERG | HERN [ 2SR -

The notes on page 14 to page 72 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FIBNE 14 BEEL 2 A2 W AAMBHRER 2 —8D -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
2019 3A31IHNFEEERGER

Note 2019 2018
My HK$'000 HK$'000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, Plant and Equipment W - HERNERE 13 4,211,206 4,304,682
Loans to Staff ETIER 15 952 432
Deposits we 7,234 8,638
Bank Deposits RITHER - 1,229,000
4,219,392 5,542,752
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Loans to Staff ETEH 15 465 386
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments FEURBRTE « FE{IFRIE
and Other Receivables R HAbEURERIE 16 172,352 131,462
Bank Deposits RITEX 4,085,800 3,984,577
Cash and Cash Equivalents HeRBELZEY 17 1,422,044 166,827
5,680,661 4,283,252
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBaE
Accounts Payable, Accruals FE{SERIE » FERT I
and Other Payables R E A FE{FBRIE 18(a) 1,289,380 1,383,774
Provision for Employee Benefits EERERERE 18(d) 402,346 408,283
Loans Payable within One Year —FREEENER 19 44,652 41,990
Deferred Income B = 20 308,694 311,872
2,045,072 2,145,919
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 3,635,589 2,137,333
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEELBERABAE 7,854,981 7,680,085
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *REBEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EERRERE 18(d) 11,163 8,377
Loans Payable after One Year —FREBENEN 19 433,035 476,224
Deferred Income A 20 1,844,831 1,947,186
2,289,029 2,431,787
NET ASSETS EEFE 5,565,952 5,248,298
Represented by: FRFRIBLE
Reserves fwES 11 354,553 369,881
Specific and Other Funds BERBRREMES 12 5,211,399 4,878,417
TOTAL FUNDS ESBE 5,565,952 5,248,298

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council
on 29 August 2019

R2019F 8 A29H
HBEIREESSRIREBEER

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, BBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BEINRBDER

#EFE+L, GBS, BBS, JP

The notes on page 14 to page 72 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

2019F3831HNEERGER
Note 2019 2018
BT HK$'000 HK$’000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, Plant and Equipment M - RN RS 13 4,195,884 4,293,280
Investments in Subsidiaries HITE AT WIRE 14 = -
Loans to Staff ETIER 15 952 432
Deposits e 7,062 8,638
Bank Deposits RITER - 1,229,000
4,203,898 5,531,350
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Loans to Staff EIEH 15 465 386
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments FEURBRTE « FE{IFRIE
and Other Receivables & H IR BRIE 16 157,328 123,433
Bank Deposits RITER 4,085,800 3,984,577
Cash and Cash Equivalents HEREEZEY 17 1,406,638 148,930
5,650,231 4,257,326
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik B=Ri
Accounts Payable, Accruals PE{SERIE ~ MBSt
and Other Payables R EAMEMARE 18(a) 1,944,281 1,955,552
Provision for Employee Benefits EEENERE 18(d) 383,957 392,408
Loans Payable within One Year —EREEENER 19 44,652 41,990
Deferred Income EIEW 20 290,430 283,851
2,663,320 2,673,801
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 2,986,911 1,583,525
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EERERRBEE 7,190,809 7,114,875
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥REBEE
Provision for Employee Benefits BERNERE 18(d) 6,170 1,626
Loans Payable after One Year —FREBENER 19 433,035 476,224
Deferred Income EEUNES 20 1,833,667 1,947,186
2,272,872 2,425,036
NET ASSETS EEFE 4,917,937 4,689,839
Represented by: FRRIBELB -
Reserves BEs 11 354,553 369,881
Specific and Other Funds BERABRRAEMES 12 4,563,384 4,319,958
TOTAL FUNDS ESHE 4,917,937 4,689,839

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council
on 29 August 2019

M 2019F 8 A 29 H
HEEIRRESES IR REERR

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, BBS, JP

Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BT RE EFE

i FE+, GBS, BBS, JP

The notes on page 14 to page 72 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE2019F3A831HLFENKEETEHRK

Specific and
Other Funds
Reserves (Note 12)
(Note 11) BERR
#ES REMES Total
(MiaE11) (MfzE12) okl
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2017 2017 4B 1 B 324,765 4,598,141 4,922,906
Inter-fund Transfers REE SR (161,344) 161,344 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income KEERE
for the Year kemsE%E 206,460 118,932 325,392
Balance as at 31 March 2018 2018 3 A 31 HA:ER 369,881 4,878,417 5,248,298
Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018 4 B 1 H&& 369,881 4,878,417 5,248,298
Inter-fund Transfers ABESER (211,907) 211,907 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income KEEER
for the Year REEKREE 196,579 121,075 317,654
Balance as at 31 March 2019 2019 3 B 31 A&tk 354,553 5,211,399 5,565,952

The notes on page 14 to page 72 form an integral part of these financial statements.
SIEMEB14EERE 72 A2 WA R/RRMBHREKZ — =5 °
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE201943A831HLFENESEHRR

Specific and
Other Funds
Reserves (Note 12)
(Note 11) BERR
wES REMES Total
(MfaE11) (MfzE12) EokC]
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2017 2017 F 4 B 1 H#E% 324,765 4,155,240 4,480,005
Inter-fund Transfers NEPE S (161,344) 161,344 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income KEFEES
for the Year e enyk 206,460 3,374 209,834
Balance as at 31 March 2018 2018 3 A 31 H## 369,881 4,319,958 4,689,839
Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018 4 A 1 H&& 369,881 4,319,958 4,689,839
Inter-fund Transfers RAPELEE (211,907) 211,907 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income KEEER
for the Year REHEkFEE 196,579 31,519 228,098
Balance as at 31 March 2019 201953 A 31 B 354,553 4,563,384 4,917,937

The notes on page 14 to page 72 form an integral part of these financial statements.

PIERE14BERB 2B 2T AR ERER 2 —2H ©
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHE2019F3A31HLELFENRFEEHRERER

Note 2019 2018
FisE HK$’000 HK$’000
Operating Activities REER
Surplus B 317,654 325,392
Adjustments for: HEIER -
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment W - WEREREITE 9 310,052 263,993
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment HEME - R NS E W 9 (156) (a7)
Interest Income FEUA (103,631) (73,405)
Operating Surplus before Changes in Working Capital EEESEE 2 KL R 523,919 515,963
Increase in Deposits and Accounts Receivable, e - FEWERTE - A FE
Prepayments and Other Receivables Ko E At FEURBRTE 2 32 0 (39,486) (14,464)
Increase in Accounts Payable, FEFTERIE - BRI
Accruals and Other Payables R EL At FE T BRIE 2 3L 0 33,053 37,643
Decrease in Provision for Employee Benefits EEREFEEHD (3,151) (36,627)
(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred Income B 2 ORfiD), /1N (79,665) 288,214
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Bank Loan for BETETIMRITER
On-lending to Staff ZFEM,/ CRd) 605 (224)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans to Staff BTEX (Em), md (599) 218
Cash Generated from Operating Activities RETRREEZRE 434676 790,723
Cash Flows from Investing Activities REZBZHER
Payment of Capital Expenditure BART AT (344,195) (759,009)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, HEWZE - IR
Plant and Equipment BT E0R 328 241
Interest Received B KFE 103,631 73,405
Decrease/(Increase) in Placement of Fixed Deposits TeR B RBE=E AN
with Banks with Original Maturity over Three Months RITERZRL,/(3800) 1,127,777 (259,657)
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Investing Activities  R&EEENFTESE /(£A)
wReFE 887,541 . (945,020)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities METBHZRER
(Repayment)/Drawdown of Loan from Government (B8) /it BTE S 17(b) (67,000) 110,000
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from Financing Activities BEEEFT (EH) ELE
wRe®® (67,0000 110,000
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents HE&RHBEEZEN>
FEm (i) 1,255,217 (44,297)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1 April R4B1BNHERESEEY 166,827 211,124
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31 March R3ALANRERESEEY 17 1,422,044 166,827

The notes on page 14 to page 72 form an integral part of these financial statements.
SIEMEB14EERE 72 A2 WA R/RRMBHREKZ — =5 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ R B 5E

(a)

14

BACKGROUND

de =
A

The Vocational Training Council (the Council) was established in Hong Kong under the Vocational Training Council Ordinance
(the Ordinance). Under Section 17(3) of the Ordinance, the Council has to cause to be prepared, after the end of each financial
year, a statement of comprehensive income of the Council during that financial year and a balance sheet of the Council on the
last day thereof.

BB (ARBEEIE ) 2R IECHR N R B R (B ZEO) EE BRI - ZEBIFL7G)RKRE - BIBENSEI K
FEAREZ  GREZEVBFELEAALNZEKESR  URNREEBNEEERER

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
EFEETBE

Statement of Compliance
BREH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Council and its subsidiaries (collectively the Group) is set out below.

A BHRRDIRBEBSTHTMASAMABEANCEBMBREER) (BEAEERZENEBHBRELEL) - (BE
SEIDERE  URBBARXRSTHRE) MERN - BIISREMB AR (GBAKE) KANTZESHERSMAT -

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Council. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group and the Council for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

ERSTMASAME THEREBITIKEBBEREEL)  HEEAEAKERBIBEENZSHHBEXER B
IR FE LIRS AMERT VR - HAKE RIS KRR T ROZEFTIAMTE2(c) °

The Group has not applied any new standards or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
Note 24).
B AR AEAEARARSTTHBERNWIHER L ZE B2 HMEE24)



(b)

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEEHRRE)

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
B HRRNmERELE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 comprise the Council and its subsidiaries.

BZE2019F 3831 HLFENGEMKBRRBIERIIBREMB AT ©

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

P BHRREABRLRANERTEREM -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
EEEERNNS(EBYMBRMEEN) M BBMRE  EFHSHEHERZEARYEE - 868  WARIHZIIHRE
BN EEHHE - A3 REBR - ZEEFAREBBRRDRBEEBEIZKBRRAEEFABATESENHMERMAE
H HERRATEREELIRHEMRTTHIEEREBENRABHEAHENER - BRERTEBRINZEMET -

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

ZEMETRABRRERISERS c HEMATETBIR BT RFEINEFNETE  SEEFNSTHTHRNER
RIISHT  MEATR B EM KRR - A B R AR N A RET -

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

EEEAERA(EBYBREERNE AU BBRREEATERETHREALE T A B A MEES

Changes in Accounting Policies
S BREE

The HKICPA has issued a humber of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s and the Council’s financial statements:
EESTHMASERMSEMERCBITN(EBUBREER)  WRASTHHRBERER - HP > UTEBEREER
BB BREREE

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(BEBUBREERNEIR EMIT A

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(BEBMBERESEANEISK [ BEFERIBA
The Group or the Council has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting

period.

ARHEAE B R 14 R B PR 7E & B S 51 HA R 1) R A8 RO 3 2 By SRk o
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(c)

16

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

TES

FTBUGR (&)

Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
B BREE (&)

(i)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(BEMBEHBREEANFEIR[€mIA |

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” (“ECL”) model. The ECL model
requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier
than under the “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.
(BERMBREENFORUNBREEFSEITECL) BXMA(E BT ERDE IR EELEFHE IER - ECLE
HERGETEHSHEEEBENGERR AR EBSTTERDE IR [CRHEEE | SHENERECL

The Group and the Council apply the new ECL model to financial assets measured at amortised cost (including trade
and other receivables).

AHBRBHBEFTHWECLEEEARZBRRATENEHEE (BRES RAMRBYTIR)

The adoption of HKFRS 9 does not have any material impact on the financial position and the financial result of the
Group.
BB B BEREZEADEIORH BN BRI R M BERLRINEATE -

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(BEBMBERESERNE 15K [EFERRA

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering
of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the accounting for construction contracts.
(BEMBMEERNE ISREL T —HA2EMNER > ARBHEEFPETSENBAN—LHEA  (BBUKRE
ERDE 15 HEAR(EBEHEANE 18 WA ICREHEEMRREBRBEENRA) R(EBSTERDE 1157
(BEEX) > HRERARESHANSTER -

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of
the financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from contracts with customers.

(BBMBREENFEISHETSIABEIMELREEHRERT  EXEVBBRREAETHREZTFSNEENERA
REERENME - 28 KERTHEEM

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group has an unconditional right to consideration. If the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note 2(0)) before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration for the
promised goods and services in the contract, then the entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognised when a customer pays non-refundable consideration,
or is contractually required to pay non-refundable consideration and the amount is already due, before the Group
recognises the related revenue. For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

BE(ERBMBRMELENIE 155 - REXAEBEEFGEZIZOENERNR - 7 HRFZEWFIE - MRAEBIEEMRF
HEZEERPEAENERARBENREZAEIEBRA (B2 REMTE20) ZENEMNKEERASREE [
B MRAEEEIMEBEBAZA > EPFXNTARENNKIE  RECTSRERXINTATRENREL HLBEEK
- ZUESHEEIARCREML  MFEMER HEFFIE—SRE  RIRFERAEEIFEREME -
HNZEERE  BEERNEREENESREETUEREIIR -

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any material impact on the financial position and the financial result of the
Group.
BB B BRELERDE 1S RETRBNN BRI RV BEELEETAEALE -



(d)

(e)

SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
-I_E&% (nlﬁ)

Subsidiaries
Lo ENG|

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group control an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and the parties) are considered.
MEBARREAEBEFNER - EARBEEESHERENSNEREEMRAEIZRAZORURERE HZEZZE
A AIAKBIEGIZER - T EAEBRESHEE LB LT EZE (AMBRAEMSEE) BEER -

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
HBLARNRESHITHEHEBREIAGEMBRERAN  EEEHELLERL - MBAARZENEHRERS » U
REBARARZEEARSMEENARERERN  ERGERFSVEBRRETULEIEN BBRAARAZBERARSMEELEN
SREEENEBERETRRNERT » DUKHERSR KR WERE S EFUIKE -

In the Council’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses (see Note

2(g)).-
KRR zEEEERR - HHEQRANREURANBRBERBRESR F2RHME22)

Property, Plant and Equipment
D3 - SRR 1B

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(g)).

M - BBERRBURSBRRTITERBERBESR F2HME2e

Land and/or buildings owned or held under a leasehold interest by the Council which are leased to subsidiaries are classified
as campus used by a subsidiary in the Council’s balance sheet. Such assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(g)).

BBEERUEAEREZFE 2T R REF - AUBAEFHEAR ﬂ ’ eF%J'lﬁZﬁFEF%’%EP DERMEABEA
ZRE - ZEEEUMAKHIREZTINERBEBESIR GF2RHME2(g
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(e)

18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEFBER (&)

Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd)
2 - B xR (F8)

The Group estimates the useful lives of various categories of property, plant and equipment on the basis of their designed life,
planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

AEBREBREYE WBERRBEZRTFH > #ETEREREREER  RMETEHUERAFE - Y3 - HBERRENT
ERRERARERMGEREEE (WER)  BURGIEAZERABESRETE  UBHERA - FB0T :

Interests in leasehold land held for own use are depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

REREE T 2 BRERRBTNEMAERE -

- Buildings situated on leasehold land, except for the campus located in Chai Wan are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being not more than 50 years after the date of land grant.
URBEE T £ 2BF (SERBIRN) - REBTWEBRFEAAIERFR - EFRSRM M BHR50F (EEE) R
SIEIE -

- Campus located in Chai Wan is depreciated over 50 years after the date of completion (see Note 3).
KERENITERRKRT I AHBRUS0FTE (F2HME3)

- Improvements works shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives of 5-7 years
BFREIRE BT HHEBAREFAIEAFR(G-7F)  WBREERE

- Furniture and equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7 years
HEERRME HENSERBSTETIERAFR(4-7F)  LREERE

- Computer equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7 years
ERE HENSERBSTETIERAFR(4-7F)  LREERE

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

% MBREENZTBINAERFERTE  SBINFESEBHE - EEZTAFREARMBEE (WER)HE
REFETEE -

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on the date of retirement or disposal.
iEEEJEEtlj%#@%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁzuﬂﬁﬁm’éﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁtH%Fﬁ%H&Ai%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁz_%%ﬁ%%i » WREREES HEE
BIAZERZERRA °



(f)

(9)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEEHHRR(E)

Construction in Progress
ERIRE

Construction in progress is stated at cost, which comprises accumulated costs of construction, professional fees and interest
expenses, if any, capitalised prior to the completion of the respective projects, less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when the construction is completed and the asset is ready for its intended use.
ERIBRUNAHBRBESESR  EFRTEAHE HNAERERFTREER BXEBERARIEBTHAMER LT E
3 i gi;@m> - BIRRH  EECAEEGARE  WERAEERLEERL TERIRGEEANE  #ERS
BREENERF -

Impairment of Assets

EERE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired, or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

FHBEESEAEASZABMIIRNES  UBRENATEERTHRAENSR  IRUEERRBNWBESETBFER
2R

- Property, plant and equipment (including campus used by a subsidiary);

M - HBERRE (BEMBARERZRE) |

- Construction in progress; and
EEIR K

- Investments in subsidiaries.

HNBATIRE ©

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of such an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
MRERBESNR > ESFHEENTREEENMGET EEENRESESR AT REIHER  EFEET2EHKERERR
EE1E -

(i) Calculation of Recoverable Amount
A E BEENETE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
EENTUEHEREMABHRHERALEAEEMEFNRSHE - RIHEERABEER AN RRATRE
DAAERREKTSILESREREECRERAR2HRARRE  RREHRE BEETEBYNHMEE
EERERER  BURBUELRERENS/ N —AEE (TELRSEN) RENVBEAWREI £ -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEFBER (&)

Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

EERE (&)

(ii)  Recognition of Impairment Losses
BRRERE

An impairment loss is recognised in statement of comprehensive income if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
EEESHMBNRSAEEVNREEBRBAINESER  HEFEFSE2ERERTER - ReEEENUN
WEEE BRI R R EN (RZAEN) WEEREE ; HEENREETSREEREER D RER H SRR
(WAEtE) e AEE (WEEE) °

(iii)  Reversal of Impairment Losses
REEEEE

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
ERFEREATRESENGTTHREENZEE  EENESFESHER - MERNBESEURRENTIFERR
RBEBENEERASERR - MERMNRESETREIABRNFEANTAZHIRGER

Accounts and Other Receivables
FEUR BR1E & H At EEURFRIE

A receivable is recognised when the Group or the Council has an unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
ERARBIBIEEBEREEZFIENERE > BRFIETURER - IREXNZARBIP AR FTELB —RER - 8
BEZFIANER R ERER

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowance for credit losses as determined
below:

RYGREFRAERANREREFEERRER - REBRKASIR - ARUOT :

(i) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
5201854 A1 BEBEAWER

The loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs), which are those losses
that are expected to occur over the expected life of the accounts receivables. The loss allowance is estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.
BREGSNGFESHERKLBRBMERBL(ECL) MR ERRNRERFEAFRAZENEL - BERED
ERERAKBEEEEBELRNBFRER M  WREBEBASERRELRAE  IHN|EBHTFEEIRE

B — BRI



(h)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

TEE

FTBGR (&)

Accounts and Other Receivables (Cont'd)
FE U BRTE I H A FE IR GR IR (1)

(i)

(ii)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Cont'd)
H20185 4 B 1 BitEARBER (&)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with any changes recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group or the Council recognises an impairment gain or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of account and other receivables through a loss allowance account.

ECLEBERES BHEMNE  HAEEHBEIR[/EER - AEBIBIIBEREESRR > UBBEXERERP
HERB MEMERRERE S HETHERE -

The gross carrying amount of an account debtor or other receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off.

REEBASHMERRNEIAEEIEERERAZNERT (B2 HNE2H) FUFEHE - BEBREEAKEE
EERASEAUEEEAREREUNEETHEBENEERRARIEER

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
20185 4 A1 B ZAIBAMBER

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when there is objective evidence of impairment and are
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate where the effect of discounting is material. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about events that have an impact on
the asset’s estimated future cash flows such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

EARENEERER  RERVWAESEESHER - RERNVBEFERSREENRABREMGTRREESR
EMERE MFRMNFEELR > AIFHR - BENEEIBEER - LARNEE  BErESHEREXELIUBERE
WEFTARRRERE - WEBABTHMBREE -

Impairment losses for accounts receivable included within accounts and other receivables whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that

the recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income.

REEWARIE R HnEWFIEH » BLWEREREE EXTAWE BB RENREEESTCHENREEREF - &
AEBRARBREMNEE +9BTE  RESEHEREVRRESRHE  BREESREPNEETISER - KEER
?F%E%’BE BEFMREENZEREPER HABZRACESNBECEZEERcRESN2HARERTE

B

Cash and Cash Equivalents
RERRTEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
REkBReLSEMERRITEFRRRE - FHARTNEMGHBRBNEHRER  UREHASRBMNIRE - BLERERF
URRERSEANRSHEE  EESBNREARTA  UEBAZ=EARNEIE -
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SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
-I-I-E&% (n‘ﬁ)

Accounts and Other Payables
FEA BRIE |2 H A FE A X8

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

e RRIA R BN FIRNRZR A A BERER - HRUBHEBATIR - HEETREER K BILURAIIER o

Contract Liabilities
eRERE

A contract liability is recognised as receipts in advance when the customer pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2(0)). A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2 (h)).

EEFEARBERIMBRANINTTRENTIER  SREEKEERAHARTIE (R 20 ﬁﬂ-ﬁ%%ﬁ’&w*ﬁﬁﬁ
WARTEEIFHE WA ATRENEZERN  SNEEESHER - TEEBRT - mﬁﬁﬁwifﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁéuﬂz %18 (R FfEE2(h

Loans and Borrowings
ERREE

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in the statements of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

MRBENRRAABEINREB RS RAER - Hi% é AR EE AR AR - MR EEEBREE £
ﬁE EHEA‘JEE%HE’J%JM&EFH REEBERFPUBRFRGTE  UREEFHER -

Employee Benefits
EEREA

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

%ﬁé FERE - *ﬁ"%#{ﬁx BERERZA R REFREBRBAAE  EARBREERMEERBNEFERALRR i
MENSZNIENFLEEEEEEFEBEARN  AZESHEUHRBENIER -

(ii) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

REFEFBCRFEABETTEMRIDNREFELABFIELBSHR > WMIRKEZEARERABEZB/MAX -

(iii) Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

BHRIHEREEAEBEEES - AREERGE (”riJ SERENES RN  THRRRTIERILESSON
l BREEAGTEMA LEESNMEFLHERER



(n)

(0)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEEHHRR(E)

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
EHERIBAEE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the Council has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

HEAERBIBIE AR BRENBH AR ERIRERY  MBETZEBENEERZERBERENERIMR » EAE
tHﬁJ;'%E’ME%;rE%  AKBESHZFESIBETITENEETRERS - WREUKEEBEEAN  AIREAETEHEAEXH
HYIRE R DI ER o

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
HESERBENENERIMRNATEERE  IRELZHEEHBFELIENMLS  EFEEZEBRESIELE  BR
WERERMROATEEEBEARI - MRAEBHNEBERTFERISESRZARBEHRERETRBEFETHES T
BAYBAE  BRANEEERIMNRH AT EEMEEERIRRI o

Income Recognition
AT

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the provision of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

FHBRAEZLEEBEDY  RERBHELNWRSESHIAB/EA -

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group or the Council is expected to be entitled, excluding
those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

EEMTRBHEFRCERAETF SR EABEERZEER  AHBEIRIIBHEPERESHNARZNESEI AR
A BREERE=ZFRIRNEE - WASRETIEELE2HE WS RER

(i) Government Subventions
BFmEh S

Government subventions consist of recurrent subventions, non-recurrent subventions and other specific grants
received from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the Government). Recurrent
subventions are recognised as income in the statement of comprehensive income when there is reasonable assurance
that the Group or the Council will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the subventions will be
received. Non-recurrent subventions are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred during
the year.

BRA#EDEEREREEBFINTHRERA (GBEBN) WAEHE - IKEFHDREMBSEAREBR - EAUGE
BEAKBIRIBREETEENTRERESRILCEFDESEBNE  SELFEYEESEZHKERERR/K
A REFPEUFABRENEBEILSEAREIBUEA -

Subventions and grants earmarked for capital expenditure purpose are initially accounted for as deferred income (see
Note 2(p)) and are subsequently recognised as income over the useful life of the related assets when the assets are
put into use, to the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.
EEARERIENEEREBRIVESEIARELE R (F2HMTE20)  HREZEEHEAR  #ERk
BYESREBEEZTATHRUZHBMNEENIES LS EARBEIBEA -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEFBER (&)

Income Recognition (Cont'd)

LON
(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(%)

Government Subventions (Cont'd)
By (&)

Other specific grants without a condition for refund of any unspent balances are recognised as income in the statement
of comprehensive income when received, while for those specific grants that contain a condition for refund of any
unspent balances are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred during the year.
REMTEERANBERRER  BERUNKEEAWER LEIRBWA - BLEEREKENTEAREBR
SUFEABRENEERIEEARREREZBUEA

Tuition Fees and Training Charges
BENREER

Tuitions fees and training charges are recognised as income on an accrual basis over the duration of the courses and
unearned fees and charges are treated as receipts in advance.

BENREEASRRREEREUETFIAR  BH2ERBEBRIAFERKE

Interest Income
FIE WA

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

RITEFRAEREWRARNAERRREFE IR o

Donations
BR

Donations are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the Group or the Council becomes entitled
to the donations and it is probable that they will be received, which is generally upon receipt of cash.

SNRBETRAEB R B AR T Re WEGZRIBB - BERKECREREZHWER EBIBB/BA -

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities under Operating Leases
REBENTES Rt HEWA

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term.

ReHEnRERESWATHERMAENESHER - USHET2ERERER -

Services Income
BRAEUWA

Services income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the related services are rendered.

BBRAERBERBEREHEEZEAREREI/BA -



(p)

(a)

(r)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEEHHRR(E)

Deferred Income
EIE W

Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets are incurred.

BERBNBFHEB SNSRI ARELERS - HEUABRAXIEREENNEXHSBERRBEIBWA -

Operating Lease Expenses
REHEZH

Where the Group or the Council has the use of assets held under operating leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group or the Council, payments made under the leases are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to statement of comprehensive income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

AEBIRIREEEBCEHS (KEHEENEEHEHED  REBBRIN D EEEEAR < k& RN EZ T A %E
RBIR)EREE  ARFIERHEEECELENBZEAFTARREZS —EE  FASREBHEFEENNR  £HE
FORENEEER  UEEEZHKERNR - IESNHEEEE  DEAERRBFHECSREN—B2  E2EKERE
RoFEHERNHEEEZETHE  E2HEHBAERPER -

Borrowing Costs

fEE A

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Wig BEREEEE (WA -BRGBREEZHREARNTURENERE) TEENERBEZEERATITAZSE
EEZHA - HEERANELE 2 HBBERA/ZE -

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

HEEERIMAX BENARETHREARIATUHENEENENTEE  EELNEERASHERCEREENT
DA - BNEEEAR BTN L AMERTFETARSHEER  NEEIELEZEERLEEL
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

SETEEK ()

Related Parties

BER

(i)

(ii)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:

BT AL BIRZALTRERENTHRKEBREEEEE

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;

R R E B HAE

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

HARBEEARZE X

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

REKBNTIEEEAS -

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

i fF & T HUEM —IRRG - BIZEREAKETEE

(a) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

ZEREAREBER -HBRE (AZFLQTE - MBAARBRKNBEQDKLEHE)

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

E-EMAR-EMNBEATSAELK (RS -ERANEATIHBRTREZHEATAAED
%)

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

MEBRYIRE =S 28&LX-

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
BRAE=ZFERCREL¥X MEBRAF=FERZHE LT -

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

ZERRATHEREST KB ERERSN EESENMROBEBRENTE -

() The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i).

ZERX ()BT A TR HEES -

(8) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

R(i)a) BEATAIHERBEALENRBEZER (FAZEBERF) TREEAR -

(h) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group.

ZERYIEEANEMAL - AREEBRERREERY -

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

BRATHREORAEREEERETRE N RPTRFEZENALRZZERIATHENIEKE °



ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
SEHEREE

Estimate and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

EERAGSPITETML  TREBESRNEAMEAZETHME  BREABEBER THRESHANSERER -

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
AHBHARREHEENRR - BEAENRR  ZREAER  ROFHEEBRERMER - UTHEHEENRRERSER
EENEGENREENTESBFEFELERRE -

Renewal of the Lease of a Campus Located in Chai Wan and Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

RERSNENEPNYE -  BBERRENTERFR

The continued operation of the campus located in Chai Wan, which is used by the Technological and Higher Education Institute
of Hong Kong, is dependent upon the renewal of its lease by the Government. The Group expects that the lease will be either
renewed on or before the expiry of the current lease term in February 2024.
éiﬁ%%?%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%E’J%%‘i‘é%?ﬁﬁii)ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁ%’ﬂ HIERR o ANEBTEFTHANE N 2024 F 2 BHERERIFS 2
BIENS4ERR -

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. The Group will revise the depreciation charges where useful lives are different from previous estimate, or will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

AHBAYE KERRBETUEAEHREBRITEER - MuERFHELERNMGTT TR > AEEBBEITIHEERSE
M RENHER M L BRHFRBEZEE

Where the actual results are different from the original estimates, such differences will impact the carrying values of property,

plant and equipment and deferred income and the recognition of depreciation and utilisation of deferred income in the years

in which such estimates have been changed.

{i%;%%{%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ% FREEREXEEBRMTHRAYE  MBRRE  BELKRE  TERIARELREMN
HzBREE -
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS

BRmE
Consolidated
AN
wh 3
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$’000
Recurrent Subventions BEMYE 2,790,130 2,662,370
Non-recurrent Subventions IERYE
— Capital Works Reserve Fund -BRIEREES
Major Capital Projects REZERTRE 3,962 309,608
Minor Building Projects NIRRT 99,000 116,988
Non-recurrent Subventions — Capital Accounts FEEHBE -ERER
Major Capital ltems REIZERIER 4,071 27,994
Plant, Vehicles and Equipment M= - Bk E 60,404 32,321
Capital Items for Skills Centres HEeBRAOERIEE 5,313 2,665
Grants from Government Agencies BT HERE R 266,705 266,033
Matching Grants (Note 4(a)) B¥ wBI & (FizE 4(a)) 2,714 1,756
Other Capital Projects Fund * Hitt@BERIREES * 89,420 (285,970)
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government BREFZF 2£8, 25,868 21,357
3,347,587 3,155,122
The Council
il
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Recurrent Subventions rE@bhE 2,790,130 2,662,370
Non-recurrent Subventions IRERHYE
— Capital Works Reserve Fund -ERIEMERES
Major Capital Projects REEEZTRE 3,962 309,608
Minor Building Projects NRIERE TR 99,000 116,988
Non-recurrent Subventions — Capital Accounts FEREHBE -ERIRER
Major Capital ltems REERIEH 4,071 27,994
Plant, Vehicles and Equipment WE - B R 60,404 32,321
Capital Items for Skills Centres FEEE R/ OERIEH SRSikS 2,665
Grants from Government Agencies BUF M BB TR 251,408 246,700
Matching Grants (Note 4(a)) o Bh & (s 4(a)) 2,587 1,756
Other Capital Projects Fund * HMBELTRES 89,420 (285,970)
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government B E R 2 R 2528, 25,868 21,357
3,332,163 3,135,789
* Included in the balance are HK$205 million (2018: HK$174 million) being depreciation of capital expenditure during the year which

is released from deferred income and HK$116 million (2018: HK$460 million) being capital expenditure recognised as deferred
income (see Note 20).

EREERFETER BN 2E5008 T (20185F | BHE1E7 4008 ) RELERZBRABWA - B 1{81,6008 7T (2018
FB¥426,0008 ) NEXRRXZAIWBARELE RS (F2EMEE20)



GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)

BA#EE (&)
Matching Grants
[iNESEC kS
The matching grants comprise:
BB S E1E -
Consolidated
=)
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for = FEBERithiEEkELE
Post-secondary Students (Note 4(a)(i)) (FEE 4(a)(i)) 2,587 1,756
Sixth Matching Grant Scheme EARmE BB E
(Note 4(a)(ii)) (BIEE 4(a)(ii)) - -
Seventh Matching Grant Scheme FtmEEmEheETE
(Note 4(a)(iii)) (MFEE 4(a)iii)) 127 -
2,714 1,756
The Council
B35
2019 2018
HK$’'000 HK$’000
Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for HFEBELRihEER LB S
Post-secondary Students (Note 4(a)(i)) (MIEE 4(a)(i)) 2,587 1,756
Sixth Matching Grant Scheme EPAY SRl
(Note 4(a)(ii)) (B EE 4(a)(ii) = -
2,587 1,756
(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme)

5 FEE R R LB 8 (BREsTE)

A Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students was launched from the 2011/12 academic year to
subsidise post-secondary students participating in short-term internship or learning programmes in Mainland China
on a matching basis. The Government matching grants and the related donations are separately disclosed below in
compliance with the requirement of the Scheme.

H2011/128F#E » BUFHTHNELBEN BB EEFE > URHEXEYELELFFEAN MBS MEHER
EREY - BAFRH WIS REABNEHEIRESINEEERBIIEHNTBRERRA

The portion of the grants received which has not been utilised was recorded as government subventions under deferred
income. The grants are recognised as income upon utilisation to the extent of the amount of related expenditure
actually incurred. During the financial year 2018-19, HK$2,587,000 (2017-18, HK$1,756,000) was recognised

as the grants income and as at 31 March 2019, the balance of deferred income was HK$8,746,000 (2017-18:
HK$11,333,000).

HoeWzBRMEREAUSIARBELERE THBAHEYE - ZBRNEARUAERBENEBE XL SERRE
REWA © 2018- 19 FEBR T HRARB®E258. 78 T (2017-185F : BH#E175.68T) * MM 2019F 3831
B EEWRmAEREA BT 874.6 8T (2017-18%F 1 B%1,133.387T) °
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)

BB ()

(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont'd)
S22 Rt EE (&)

Consolidated

=
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNESEE kR [iREEEEEN
HK$'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2017 2017 F 4 B 1 H 2 &8k 13,578 4,099
Income g

Grants Received/Matched Donations Bz Bhe RN - -
Interest Income FEWA 180 53
180 53

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KRS BRTX

AR E A

Students Exchange Activities BERES 2,095 -
Students Competitions BAE 21 -
Students Industrial Attachments BETEEYE 135 -
Students Study Programmes BEERTE 25 -
Students Training Activities BAIISHEH 149 -
Scholarships and Prizes RELLES - 398
Other Student Development Activities Hih B4 B RIEE) - 4
Other Expenses HihE A - -
2,425 402

Balance as at 31 March 2018 2018 % 3 A 31 H 2 &tk 11,333 3,750




(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B < (&)

(i)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont'd)

2 FEERER LS E (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2018

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Students Exchange Activities
Students Competitions

Students Industrial Attachments
Students Study Programmes
Students Training Activities
Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Development Activities
Other Expenses

Balance as at 31 March 2019

2018 4 B 1 Hz&&k
&
AL ) o Ei=E N
FEWA

R e =P A
HAEREE A
BEXTED
BALE
BAETHED
BEBETE
B4 ERES
REBSRES
Hitt B4 BRI
HthBA

2019% 3 B 31 H 2458k

Consolidated

o=
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[NEagEEnk [INEREEEN
HK$’000 HK$’000
11,333 3,750
184 64
184 64
2,081 -
37 -
148 -
505 -
- 562
2,771 562
8,746 3,252
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
BB ()

(i)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont'd)

E 2L RmERtETE (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2017

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Students Exchange Activities
Students Competitions

Students Industrial Attachments
Students Study Programme

Students Training Activities
Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Development Activities
Other Expenses

Balance as at 31 March 2018

2017F 4 B 1 B2 &8k

Wy &8

Bz BRI

AMEWA

BREyE 4
HAEREE A

BRI sY

B E

BALE

B4 THER
Biraatil
BA TS
BBELRES
Hin B4 BRI

HtEH

2018 % 3 A 31 H 2 &tk

The Council
B3 /Z

Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNESEE kR [iREEEEES
HK$'000 HK$’000
13,578 4,054
180 53
180 53
2,095 -
21 -
135 -
25 -
149 -
- 375
2,425 375
11,333 3,732




(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B < (&)

(i)

(ii)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont'd)
E 84 R EETE (&)

The Council
58311 5
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[NEagEEnk [INEREEEN
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018F 4 B 1 Az 48k 11,333 3,732
Income g

Grants Received/Matched Donations BB BEEIER - =
Interest Income FEUTA 184 64
184 64

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations R e =P A

MIEEEE A

Students Exchange Activities BEIREH 2,081 -
Students Competitions BEAE 37 =
Students Industrial Attachments BAETHEE 148 -
Students Study Programme BAEBE - _
Students Training Activities BAIJISES 505 -
Scholarships and Prizes BREBERES — 544
Other Student Development Activities HihE A RREE - -
Other Expenses HinEH - -
2,771 544
Balance as at 31 March 2019 2019%F 3 B 31 Hz &6 8,746 3,252

Sixth Matching Grant Scheme
FERmAE B & T E

A 6th Matching Grant Scheme was launched from the 2012/13 academic year and covers both operations funded by

the Education Bureau (EDB) and self-financing operations of the Council on a matching basis. The private donations

and government matching grants are segregated in respect of EDB funded and self-financing operations in compliance

with the requirement of the 6th Matching Grant Scheme.

H2012/1328F i » BUFHTHE AWERHHDEHE URBFEXRERINIEHBEREYRBELENTIE - F

E}/\\%%&%ﬁm%ﬁﬁﬂbﬁmﬁ%\E’*Eﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬂE’Hﬁ%ﬁ%’k UHEREDEENARBELELANDFAIH
B ERA o
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(a)

34

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
BB ()

(ii)  Sixth Matching Grant Scheme(Cont’d)
ERWEH MBI E (&)

Consolidated

&a
EDB-funged Operatiqn Self—fina]ncing Opefation Total
BERENEERA BEEERT At
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Qrants Donations Qrants Donations Qrants Donations
Rtime REER  Eofhe REER  EHEye RREER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2017 WITE4ALAZES 32,775 12,640 12,945 8,343 45,720 20,983
Transfer between Operations upon Actual ~ RERES /BHZ
Usage of Grants/Donations ERERBRMER 141 141 (141) (141) - -
32916 12,781 12,804 8,202 45,720 20,983
Income g
Interest Income ELON 444 169 155 99 599 268
444 169 155 99 599 268
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations &84 /1B
e nERER
Teaching and Research Enhancement YEHERME - - - - - -
Internationalisation and Student AR REARAED
Exchange Activities 2,035 - 1,961 - 3,996 -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRKS - 1433 - 767 - 2,200
Bursaries BEd N/A - N/A - N/A -
Student Development BLERE 33 1" 106 5 429 16
Capital Projects BRER N/A - _ _ _ _
Others Hh - 98 - 21 - 119
2,358 1,542 2,067 793 4,425 2,335
Balance as at 31 March 2018 2018331 A28 31,002 11,408 10,892 7,508 41,804 18,916
Expenditure by Level of Study %t (A2 EREDE)
Sub-degree Operations BB RE 2,358 1,542 1,952 793 4310 2,335
Degree and Above Byl LRE - - 115 - 115 -
2,358 1,542 2,067 793 4,425 2,335

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and

received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16, 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19.
ERBHEE ST ERERH2012F8A1HE2014F7A31HWIBR ¥ B E2014/15 2 F M B KU -
2015/16 » 2016/17 » 2017/18 % 2018/19 B2 F NI R BB E WA -



(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B < (&)

(i)  Sixth Matching Grant Scheme(Cont'd)
ERWELHBEITE ()

Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018F4 1A ER
Transfer between Operations upon Actual ~ 1RIEBRIS /1852
Usage of Grants/Donations ERFRERMmER
Income g
Interest Income FEMA
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations ~ £8ey@EnS /1%
fxfREER
Teaching and Research Enhancement YEHRERHE
Internationalisation and Student AR REERED
Exchange Activities
Scholarships and Prizes RELRES
Bursaries nEs
Student Development BrER
Capital Projects ERER
Others 2
Balance as at 31 March 2019 201953831 2R
Expenditure by Level of Stucy L (EERENE)
Sub-degree Operations BIENRE
Degree and Above BTN LEE

Consolidated

e

EDB-funded QReratiqn Self-fina]ngi‘n‘g Operation Togal

BEREYEE g2En At
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Qrants Donations Qrants Donations
R¥ifEe REEY  EoEye RgEy  EoRye RERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
31,002 11,408 10,892 7,508 41,894 18,916
82 104 (82) (104) - _
31,084 11,512 10,810 7,404 41,894 18,916
614 21 204 126 818 337
614 21 204 126 818 337
2,500 - 3,359 - 5,859 -
80 728 - 269 80 997
N/A - N/A - N/A -
N/A - - - - -
- - - 54 - 54
2,580 728 3,359 323 5,939 1,061
29118 10,995 7,655 7,207 36,773 18,202
2,580 728 174 323 3,354 1,051
- - 2,585 - 2,585 -
2,580 728 3,359 323 5,939 1,051

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and
received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16, 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19.

FEAREEEB B AER2012F8H1HE2014F 731 BB

2015/16 > 2016/17 » 2017/18 % 2018/19 2 F I ZH@MEI YA -

I 2 7 2014/15 225 58 5 L ¥ R WL ©
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(a)

36

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
BB ()

(ii)  Sixth Matching Grant Scheme(Cont’d)
ERWEH MBI E (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2017 W1TF4B1AZES
Transfer between Operations upon Actual ~ 1iEHEIS /1852
Usage of Grants/Donations ERERERmER
Net Transfer from Subsidiary RIEL A FER
Income Wi
Interest Income HEBA
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations ~ &¥eigB% /1B
FnERER
Teaching and Research Enhancement UEBERHE

Internationalisation and Student

Exchange Activities
Scholarships and Prizes BELTRS
Bursaries BEd
Student Development SERR
Capital Projects BIER
Others =0
Balance as at 31 March 2018 201853831 At

Expenditure by Level of Study
Sub-degree Operations
Degree and Above

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and

BRERELRRED

%4 (EERERE)
sEiEE
gigyiee

The Council
BillR
EDB-funged Operatiqn Self—finqncing Opefation Total
BERENEERA BEEERT At
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations

st BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000

st [
HK$'000 HK$ 000

st BB
HK$'000 HK$'000

2,775 12,640 11,670 8,343 44,445 20,983
1w 1 (141) (141) - -

- - 1,160 - 1,160 -
32,916 12,781 12,689 8,202 45,605 20,983
444 169 155 %9 599 268
444 169 155 %9 599 268
2,035 - 1,846 - 3,881 -
- 1,433 - 767 - 2,200

N/A - N/A - N/A -
33 1 106 5 429 16
N/A - - - - -

- % - 21 - 119
2,358 1542 1,952 793 4,310 2,335
31,002 11,408 10,892 7,508 41,894 18,916
2,358 1,542 1,952 793 4310 2,335
2,358 1542 1,952 793 4310 2335

received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16, 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19.
EARBHEE ST RER2012F8A1HE2014F7A31HWIBR ¥ B E2014/15 2 F M B KU -
2015/16 » 2016/17 * 2017/18 % 2018/19 B2 F NI R BB E WA -



GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B < (&)

(i)  Sixth Matching Grant Scheme(Cont'd)
ERWELHBEITE ()

The (zouncil
RBalR
EDB-funded QReratiqn Self-fina]ngi‘n‘g Operation ToEaI
BEREYEE g2En At
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations

s BRI
HK$'000 HKS'000

st BREH
HK$'000 HK$'000

Bl BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000

Balance as at 1 April 2018 201854 B 1HZER 31,002 11,408 10,892 7,508 41,804 18,916
Transfer between Operations upon Actual ~ RIEREIS /BB52
Usage of Grants/Donations ERERENmER 82 104 (82) (104) = =
Net Transfer from Subsidiary HHEA R FER - - (2,585) - (2,585) -
31,084 11,512 8,225 7,404 39,309 18,916
Income s
Interest Income RISHA 614 211 204 126 818 337
614 211 204 126 818 337
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations & ei#EnS /183
FxfREER
Teaching and Research Enhancement YERERHR - = = = = -
Intemationalisation and Student AR REERAED
Exchange Activities 2,500 - 774 - 3,274 -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRES 80 728 - 269 80 997
Bursaries ped N/A = N/A = N/A -
Student Development EERE - - - - - -
Capital Projects R N/A - - - - -
Others Hith - - - 54 - 54
2,580 728 174 323 3,354 1,051
Balance as at 31 March 2019 201983831 LR 29118 10,99 7,655 7,207 36,773 18,202
Expenditure by Level of Study Tt (AEEREDE)
Sub-degree Operations ABNER 2,580 728 14 323 3,354 1,051
Degree and Above Bl LEE - - - - - -
2,580 728 174 323 3,354 1,051

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and
received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16, 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19.
EAREEFEN S ERER2012F8A1HZE2014F 7 A31 BB > WEE2014/15 B F TR EE KUK ©
2015/16  2016/17 » 2017/18 % 2018/19 B F AWM R BEHEIS WA
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

Matching Grants (Cont'd)

BB ()

(iii)  Seventh Matching Grant Scheme
EtwmiiHmypestal

The 7th Matching Grant Scheme was launched from 1 August 2017 for a period of two years and covers the self-
financing operation of local degree programmes of the Council on a matching basis.
H2017F8 A 1B  BNHETANMENE tWMEE®EE UREEXRERIIFEELEEN A E L2

fIEREE °

Consolidated

o=
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[NEagEEnk [INECEEEN
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2017 2017F 4B 1 Az &tk - -
Income e
Grants/Donations wWEhE B 3,966 4,143
3,966 4,143
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations LRSS 1B
I E A
Teaching and Research Enhancement REHRERMAR - 40
Internationalisation and Student B R A TR E
Exchange Activities - 24
Scholarships and Prizes BESNES - 300
Student Development BARE - 151
Others Hith - 64
- 579
Balance as at 31 March 2018 2018 3 B 31 Az &6k 3,966 3,564
Expenditure by Level of Study STH(LEBREESH)

Degree and above B RE - 579




4.  GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

(@)  Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B < (&)

(iii)  Seventh Matching Grant Scheme (Cont'd)

FEtmicHHB T E (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2018
Income
Grants/Donations

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Teaching and Research Enhancement

Internationalisation and Student
Exchange Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Student Development

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Expenditure by Level of Study
Sub-degree operations
Degree and above

2018%F 4 B 1 B 24tk
g

WEIE B

REEBIE 1B
FRs2 Y9 1EBAE A
REHERFR
BIFRE R BE AR

ErBR
Hity

2019% 3 B 31 H 2458k

XH(UBEREDH)
B2 NEE
BLyUEREE

Consolidated

o=
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[NEagEEnk [INEREEEN
HK$’000 HK$’000
3,966 3,564
3,129 3,088
3,129 3,088
11 -
- 206
20 1,785
60 49
36 175
127 2,215
6,968 4,437
127 2,215
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4.  GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB & ()

(b)  Matching Grants (Cont'd)
BB ()

(iiiy  Seventh Matching Grant Scheme (Cont'd)

EtmicHHBEETE (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2017
Income
Grants/Donations

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Teaching and Research Enhancement

Internationalisation and Student
Exchange Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Student Development

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2018

Expenditure by Level of Study
Degree and above

40

2017F 4 B 1 B 248k
g

WEE B

RIS B
P B9 1ERAE A
REHERHE
BIFRE K A AR

BERR
Hity

2018 3 A 31 A =&tk

XH(UBEBRESR)
Byl EE

The Council
B E
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
Fe¥i#Bh & [iREEE=EN
HK$’000 HK$’000




4.  GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BB ()

(b)  Matching Grants (Cont'd)
B < (&)

(iii)  Seventh Matching Grant Scheme (Cont'd)

FEtmicHHB T E (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2018
Income
Grants/Donations

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Teaching and Research Enhancement

Internationalisation and Student
Exchange Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Student Development

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Expenditure by Level of Study
Degree and above

2018%F 4 B 1 B 24tk
g

WEIE B

REEBIE 1B
FRs2 Y9 1EBAE A
REHERFR
Bl R BE AR

BERRE
Hith

2019F 3 A 31 Bz 4tk

XH(ABERESH)
BrybEREE

The Council
B3
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
Fi¥tBh & [iVEEE R
HK$’000 HK$’000

11



TUITION FEES AND TRAINING CHARGES

BERFEER
Consolidated
AN
wh 3
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$’000
Government-funded Programmes BUREBIREE
Tuition Fees 25 752,742 791,334
Training Charges REER 33,134 34,335
Non Government-funded Programmes BT EBRE
Tuition Fees =2E 886,007 867,810
Training Charges REEHA 54,059 48,563
1,725,942 1,742,042
The Council
BB
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Government-funded Programmes BERE
Tuition Fees 25 752,742 791,334
Training Charges FREEA 33,165 34,377
Non Government-funded Programmes BT EBIRTE
Tuition Fees BE 35,823 34,071
Training Charges iz 8 H 40,599 35,232
862,329 895,014

The Group and the Council has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 to its contracts for tuition fees income such

that the above information does not include information about revenue that the group will be entitled to when it satisfies the
remaining performance obligations under the contracts for tuition fees income that had an original expected duration of one
year or less.

AEBERBIRE (BB BREEANE ISHREANEZERAZEN  FLAENTEREAREBEREEESHOTM
FEAETREEESNNE  HYKET AP —FHEEMNRERE -



DONATIONS

B
Consolidated
o=

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Designated to Student Development Foundation BLRREES 2,058 6,263
Capital Projects EERIEH 3,126 280
Scholarships and Prizes BESNES 16,998 19,450
Other Student Activities HthB4EEH 4,872 12,736
27,054 38,729

The Council

B8 311 =

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Designated to Student Development Foundation BLuERES 2,058 6,263
Capital Projects ERIEE 3,126 280
Scholarships and Prizes BEBERRES 15,243 19,057
Other Student Activities HthB4EH 26,941 11,323
47,368 36,923

OTHER INCOME

Hiblg A
Consolidated
=)

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Application and Sundry Fees BHiEE ARSEERE 27,242 27,240
Examination and Trade Test Fees ZR RS E 46,492 38,483
Sales of Goods HEERIA 19,329 19,159
Hire of Accommodation/Facilities B /RiefHeSWA 20,846 18,595
Services Income PR WA 25,845 23,203
Miscellaneous Income HibUg A 19,194 22,854
158,948 149,534
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OTHER INCOME (Cont'd)
HAttw A (&)

Application and Sundry Fees
Examination and Trade Test Fees
Sales of Goods

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities
Services Income

Miscellaneous Income

STAFF EXPENSES
BIMX

Salaries and Other Benefits

Contributions to Retirement Schemes

Salaries and Other Benefits

Contributions to Retirement Schemes

PR E A NSRS
ZRRE RN E
HEE mUA
BE/RiEEEWA
ARFSUTA

HApg A

e R EMER
RARGTEIHRR

ek EAMER
RAFTEIEEK

The Council
B E

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
24,543 24,486
46,293 38,276
19,189 19,175
88,926 86,642
125,447 129,038
19,118 22,280
323,516 319,897

Consolidated

=)
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
3,360,672 3,291,820
208,506 213,724
3,569,178 3,505,544
The Council
B3 E

2019 2018
HK$’'000 HK$’000
2,861,995 2,795,197
198,164 204,286
3,060,159 2,999,483




SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

REERGHREZHEHKZREE

Surplus is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
BHrE R/ GEA)UTER !

Interest Expense (Note 19)

Depreciation (Note 13)

Rental Expenses

Auditor’'s Remuneration

Net Foreign Exchange Gain

Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

Interest Expense (Note 19)

Depreciation (Note 13)

Rental Expenses

Auditor’'s Remuneration

Net Foreign Exchange Gain

Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

MEH (MEE19)

e (MEE13)

HE X

BTN =

SNE I
HEMR - HEE KRBz W

FEXH (MEE19)

e (MEE13)

HE X H

BB ETI =

SN
HEWSE - BBERRB 2 WS

Consolidated

=)
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
25,868 21,357
310,052 263,993
61,734 64,767
1,027 864
(246) (2,056)
(156) (a7)
The Council
BN

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
25,868 21,357
304,688 259,382
59,681 62,850
623 601
(9) (2,294)
(155) (18)
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10.

11.

46

TAXATION
Bi1E

Apart from VTC Enterprises Limited (VTCEL), the Council and its other subsidiaries are exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax
by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. VTCEL did not generate any assessable profit during the year.
BRBZEIRBEEBRITIN - BB REKE A AIRBEEBRBEIRMIE 881%  BHARBMREBRIEN - BEIRBLHE
BRABERFERBEAEFHFE -

RESERVES
B
Consolidated and the Council
e BB
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance at the Beginning of the Financial Year BB B S ¥ 4k ek 369,881 324,765
Amount Transferred to Specific and AEEEZEERER
Other Funds During the Year (Note 12) HipE® (MEE12) (211,907) (161,344)
Surplus Transferred from Statement of EE2EKERNBER
Comprehensive Income 196,579 206,460
Balance at the End of the Financial Year BI B E iR ah ek 354,553 369,881

Reserves are any savings from the recurrent government subventions for activities (other than those in respect of the Shine
Skills Centres) arising from any reasons other than a curtailment or cessation of activity in the Annual Plan, a surplus in tuition
fee income where the fee levels are approved by the Government and which is required to be returned to the Government, or
reduction in remuneration for its staff as a direct consequence of changes in the civil service. The level of reserves shall not, at
any one point in time, exceed 15% of its annual recurrent subvention in the financial year. Amount in excess of the limit should
be returned to the Government in the following financial year.

RETREILFEHEABAKSELHYE (REFREERRF ORI WEMZEERE(HREF T EIIE T/FEBBUSS
FERMEENZRERE  CBARECZERANBHRMXEFERERANBESIETEEZRALABEERARGREHE
FIOR D NBEERIN) o TREEAFRE  FESNEBEI T SEERIEFELEHY M 15% - BERIEEET —EH
BEERETBUF



12.

(a)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS

BERBRHEMES

Fund Balances
= 7

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(0)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(0)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 12(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(o)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(o)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 12(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

FEE RIS (MR 200)(1)
-BERIERERS
FREBE (M 200))

-ERRE
HitERBEEES
BHEEEEE

(MzE12(d))
fESEER
BERFER
B
HiERBEs

FEF RIS (MR 200)(1)
-ERIRREES
FE RIS (MR 200)(1)

-BRRE
HitgaRES
BT EsER

(MzE12(d))
fESEER
BEREFER
B
HitSERRES

Consolidated

= A
Iy =|
Transfer from/(to)
Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance as at Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2017 Income (Note 11) 31.3.2018
2017F #8/(%) AR 2018F
4R 1BER PERER (Pt 10) 3A31RER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(278) 278 - -
(745) 745 - -
1,448,745 182,764 - 1,631,509
74,484 (336) 5,366 79,514
913,983 (285,363) 179,938 808,558
2,062,954 201,420 (5,366) 2,259,008
87,679 1,564 - 89,243
11,319 17,860 (18,594 10,585
4,598,141 118,932 161,344 4,878,417
Consolidated
= A
Y=
Transfer from/(to)
Statement of Inter-Fund

Balance as at Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2018 Income (Note 11) 31.3.2019
2018 #a8/(%) hEsER 2019
4R 1BER PERER (et 10) 3A31RER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,631,509 59,075 - 1,690,584
79,514 (7,571) 6,085 78,028
808,558 (143,415) 236,953 902,096
2,259,008 202,321 (6,085) 2,455,244
89,243 (14,381) - 74,862
10,585 25,046 (25,046) 10,585
4,878,417 121,075 211,907 5,211,399
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(a)
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SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)

BERAZREMES (&)

Fund Balances (Cont'd)
EE#EeR ()

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(o)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(o)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 12(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(o)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(o)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 12(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

FEEBEHE (M 20))
-ERIRMEES
FEERmEIE (R 200) ()

-E%RE
HitiERBEES
BRHBEER

(ME12(d))
fRESEER
BEREER
B

EtiEREES

FEERmEIE (R 200)())
-BRIBHERES
FEERmEIE (FHEE 200)()

-E%RE
HitiEREEES
BRHBEEER

(ME12(d))
fESEER
BEREER
B

EHEREES

The Council
BAIR
Transfer from/(to)
Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance as at Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2017 Income (Note 11) 31.3.2018
20174 &g/(%) RBEEER 2018
4A1RES 2ENER (1) 3A31BES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(278) 278 - -
(745) 745 - -
1,448,745 182,764 - 1,631,509
74,484 (336) 5,366 79,514
913,983 (285,363) 179,938 808,558
1,620,053 85,862 (5,366) 1,700,549
87,679 1,564 - 89,243
11,319 17,860 (18,594) 10,585
4,155,240 3.374 161,344 4,319,958
The Council
Bl
Transfer from/(to)
Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance as at Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2018 Income (Note 11) 31.3.2019
2018 #g/(%) REBEEER 2019
4B 1RES 2EKER (& 11) 3B 31 A&
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,631,509 59,075 - 1,690,584
79,514 (7,571) 6,085 78,028
808,558 (143,415) 236,953 902,096
1,700,549 112,765 (6,085) 1,807,229
89,243 (14,381) - 74,862
10,585 25,046 (25,046) 10,585
4,319,958 31,519 211,907 4,563,384




12.

(b)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BEAZRAMES (B)

Nature and Purpose of Specific and Other Funds

BER

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

BRHEHMESTCMEREN

Non-recurrent Subventions
FREFEE

The non-recurrent subventions are one-off funds approved by the Government earmarked for capital expenditure
purposes relating to building projects, capital projects and capital items.

FEFHPERBF—RENER  ZHBSRAERFIE BRIBNEREBNERZH -

Other Capital Projects Fund
HiZRmEES

Other capital projects fund represents the balance of net book value of property, plant and equipment that are financed
by various fundings.

HttZREEESR/YE B RRERIDFENGS  WEEERTRESENER -

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
BB ERNEE

In addition to the Government subventions, specific Government grants have been obtained to support the
development of specific education projects.

BRTBUGMEBEI  FTHERERRNBRBRUAXERERSHAZHE

Projects Funded by Reserves
#ETEREE

Projects funded by reserves are projects financed by the Council’s reserves, which are savings from the recurrent
subventions (see Note 11).

RETEBRERBEBIIBNHFESEDN - ZRFBEREEUE SN RERE B2RAME11) -

Self-financing Activities
BEREEE

Self-financing activities fund represents accumulated surpluses generated from the self-financed programmes and
activities.

BEREIRE NWESREEZTSFD P RENRER -

Donations

B

Donations fund is used to support the operations of the Council and for general education purposes.

BRENESANXERIRBNERN—RBEME -

Other Specific Funds
HittsERARES

Other specific funds are subsidies obtained from organisations other than Government bodies designated for specific
purposes.

HtBERARESRAFBNPINESIERN  ZEFESKARNEEERN -
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SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BERZRAMES (&)

Capital Management
BEREE

The Group is a not-for-profit organisation aiming to provide vocational education and training in the region. The Group defines
capital as including reserves and specific and other funds. These funds, including inter-fund transfers, are managed in
accordance with the Group’s financial management policies and procedures and the relevant funding conditions, where
applicable. The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain a strong financial base to support the development of the Group.

AEBRIFLNHRE  EERUEANNEXHFEI - ARBNELEERESRETARRAMES - ELES (BERX
HECER) RREBEARBNVREERICK BEFREBESHMTIRE (NER) REEN - ARBEEEELE  TEH
CRABRRTHBREEHENKER D RESER2NMBERUZFARBHER -

There has been no change in the Group’s capital management practices as compared to prior year. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirement.

HEEFELE  ARBALRIBERBENEENME - ARBEFTEFEAIMENESRE -

Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes
REFEEREERLEEYHITEE

Projects funded by Government Agencies included balance of Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time
Programmes.

HFHBEN AR hEERENEXEREBLEEHAITIHE 2 EtR -

The Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes is to provide tuition fee reimbursement for
students pursuing relevant self-financing part-time programmes within areas of study/training in “Architecture and Town
Planning” or “Engineering and Technology” under classification of the Hong Kong Qualifications Register, offered by the
Council. 60% of the tuition fees of eligible programmes, subject to a maximum of $45,000 per person, will be refunded
to successful applicants. The tuition fee will be refunded by instalments at the end of each term of the programme upon
successful completion. Each applicant may apply for fee refund for not more than two programmes under the Pilot Scheme.
BRI EEREELEEDHTHEANEARI B RENEBEEEMNELR FIEBETE [BERHMRE IR ITE
KA | ERIRENEEREREATRHEEEY - BHEDNFFBATRERESERRECOKEE » LIRABABEE
45,0007 - ERTEEIT > BFRARZARFREMERENZE  MBESHHNPBEAADNBE—E2HNRERE
}% o



12.

(d)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BEAZRAMES (B)

Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes (Cont'd)

Fa BEEREELEEYHATHE (&)

The financial position in respect of Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes as at 31 March

is disclosed below:

BE3 AL HRBHEXEREELEPATHENYBARROT

Balance as at 1 April

Government Subventions Received
— Tuition Fees Subsidy
— Administrative Fees

Less: Expenditure
— Fees Disbursed to 3,512 (2018: 2,395)
Beneficiaries

— Administrative Cost

Balance as at 31 March

Represented by:
Tuition Fees Subsidy
Administrative Fees

4 B 1 B4R

Sz BAFER)
—Z25EH
—1THE

A
—-B%{J%3,5121L
(2018 : 2,3951% )
TEHHRNERY
— TR A

3 A 31 A&ER
FIFRIESE -

THE

Consolidated and the Council

e REEHE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
9,918 2,783
34,000 24,700
2,000 2,000
36,000 26,700
(32,600) (17,907)
(1,171) (1,658)
(33,771) (19,565)
12,147 9,018
10,542 9,142
1,605 776
12,147 9,918
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Y Y S
Cost

At 1 April 2017

Additions

Transfer to Buildings/Improvement
Works upon Completion of Projects
Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2017

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2018

Cost

At 1 April 2018

Additions

Capitalisation Adjustment (Note 13(a))

Transfer to Buildings/Improvement
Works upon Completion of Projects

Disposals

At 31 March 2019

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2018

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2019

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2019

A

2017F481H

BE

BERMNERERE
BE/yEIR

HE

2018 3A31H

ZTE
2017E4F1H
REEHE
HERER

201838318

RHFE
2018 3A31H

KA

2018F 4 A 1H

®E

B{ER% (i 13(a))

BETRNERBEZ
BE/METR

LE

2019 3A 318
ZiE
201848 1H
TEEWE
HEREE
201938318

REFE
2019F3A 318

Consolidated

&a

Buildings Construction Improvement Furniture and Computer
(Note 3) in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
BF (Wa3) EEIR ¥EIR  KEREHE BB b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
2,388,010 1,232,901 1,584,646 364,929 368,457 5,938,943
- 674,131 - 129,396 42,112 845,639
1,715,882 (1,846,418) 130,536 - - -
- - (10) (5,320) (12,264) (17,594)
4,103,892 60,614 1,715,172 489,005 398,305 6,766,988
360,355 - 1,295,303 270,020 290,005 2,215,683
80,836 - 116,172 33,723 33,262 263,993
- - (1) (5,111) (12,258) (17,370
441,191 - 1,411,474 298,632 311,009 2,462,306
3,662,701 60,614 303,698 190,373 87,296 4,304,682

Consolidated
&a

Buildings Construction Improvement Furniture and Computer
(Note 3) in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
BF (M 3) ERIR BEIR  BERRE BRE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
4,103,892 60,614 1,715,172 489,005 398,305 6,766,988
- 91,949 3,973 81,532 39,633 217,087
- - (339) - - (339)
22,033 (128,039) 106,006 - - -
- - - (5,757) (7,053) (12,810)
4,125,925 24,524 1,824,812 564,780 430,885 6,970,926
441,191 - 1,411,474 298,632 311,009 2,462,306
100,962 - 118,062 51,130 39,898 310,052
- - - (5,585) (7,053) (12,638)
542,153 - 1,529,536 344177 343,854 2,759,720
3,583,772 24,524 295,276 220,603 87,031 4,211,206




13.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Y% - MR RaRfE ()

Cost

At 1 April 2017

Additions

Transfer to Buildings/
Improvement Works upon
Completion of Projects

Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2017

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2018

KA

2017F 4R 1H

®E

BETRNER EHZ
BR/HEIR

HE

2018 3A31H
ZiE
2017%481H
KEERE
HERREE
201838318

REFE
2018 3A31H

The Council
BB
Campus
used by a
Subsidiary
(Note 13(b)) Buildings
NG (Note 3)  Construction  Improvement  Furniture and Computer
FRzR2 BT inProgress Works Equipment Equipment Total
(MZE13(0)) (MEE3) HRIR YEIRZ HERRE B R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
207,242 2,180,768 1,232,901 1,579,733 360,852 349,092 5,910,588
- - 674,001 - 123,688 40,498 838,187
1,050,792 665,090  (1,346,288) 130,406 - - -
- - - - (5,196) (12,130) (17,326)
1,258,034 2,845,858 60.614 1,710,139 479,344 377460 6,731,449
58,848 301,507 - 1292115 267,306 276,142 2,195,918
16,246 64,590 - 115,548 32,602 30,396 259,382
- - - - (5,002) (12,129) (17,131)
75,094 366,097 - 1,407,663 294,906 294,409 2438169
1182940  2.479,761 60.614 302.476 184,438 83.051 4,293,280
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(a)

(b)
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Y% - HaER e ()

The Council
RiAE
Campus
used by a
Subsidiary
(Note 13(h)) Buildings
HEAF (Note 3)  Construction  Improvement  Furniture and Computer
FRZRE BF  inProgress Works Equipment Equipment Total
(B 13(b)) (Fit5E3) EEIR YEIR HKARRHK gk @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
Cost KA
At 1 April 2018 201848 1H 1,258,034 2,845,858 60,614 1,710,139 479,344 377,460 6,731,449
Additions e - - 90,704 - 79,647 37,113 207,464
Transfer to Buildings/ BETHRIER EE2
Improvement Works upon BE/YEIR
Completion of Projects 19,835 2,198 (128,039) 106,006 - - -
Disposals HE - - - - (5,668) (7,003) (12,671)
At 31 March 2019 2019637 31H 1,277,869 2,848,056 23,279 1,816,145 553,323 407,570 6.926.242
Accumulated Depreciation ZiNE
At 1 April 2018 2018 4B 1H 75,094 366,097 - 1,407,663 294,906 294,409 2,438,169
Charge for the Year TEERE 28,229 72,733 - 117,597 48,613 37,516 304,688
Written Back on Disposals HEZDH - - - - (5,496) (7,003) (12,499)
At 31 March 2019 2019%3 A 31H 103,323 438,830 - 1,525,260 338,023 324,922 2,730,358
Net Book Value REFE
At 31 March 2019 201983 F31H 1474546 2.409.226 23,279 290.885 215,300 82,648  4,195.884

Capitalisation Adjustment
EXRLRAE

Capitalisaton adjustments relate to the building projects capitalised based on contractors’ claimed value which have been
adjusted following the finalisation of contract values.

EXMARRENLEENRBARBERNIREERENMNETIRE - RFARRRSVEEMHE

Campuses Used by a Subsidiary
MR A BEAZRE

Use of the campuses located at Tsing Yi and Chai Wan are shared among the Council and the Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong. The lands on which the buildings erected are granted under Private Treaty by the Government
for a term of 56 years from April 1991 to June 2047 and 10 years from February 2014 to February 2024 respectively. The
purpose of the buildings is to provide education and training services. Because of the special restricted purpose including
specific uses and absolute prohibition against alienations, comparable market transaction and alternative reliable estimate of
fair value are not available and hence no reliable fair value of the property could be obtained.
URBRMEENREHBIREEESELXAENRERABER - 2L HURABOFTXABFHL » 255856 FH
1991 F 4 BZ 2047 F6 AM10FH2014F 2 AF2024F 2 A » WAFREHERERIEIRE - AREEHENRE (2
RETAZRELIER) REEEZTSEXZRAEMAZE2EFAAABYTER  WREUENARE -



13.

()

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Y% - MR RaRfE ()

Interests in Leasehold Land
HE T 2R

The Council holds interests in leasehold land and buildings associated with the following properties, the costs of which were
financed by government subventions or other sources of fundings, and were fully written off in prior years.

BIRERUTYERAEE T RETIER - HRAHBABYESREBESKREMER - YERUEFETREE -

(i)

(iii)

Campuses completed prior to the setting up of the Council and taken over from the Government by the Council at nil
value which include the four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill, Kwai Chung,
Kwun Tong and Haking Wong), Haking Wong Seafront Complex and Shine Skills Centre (Kwun Tong).
BARERTRIBRABIBRIAMSERNRSEHE  NEEBEERELR (BBEHR) 2R -BEE
- 3%58 - BENERS  ErnSBREeZREREREERESDL (BE) -

The VTC Tower, four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tsing Yi, Chai Wan, Tuen Mun and
Sha Tin), the VTC Kowloon Bay Complex, VTC Kwai Chung Complex, VTC Pokfulam Complex, Maritime Services Training
Institute and Shine Skills Centre (Pokfulam and Tuen Mun) which were constructed after the setting up of the Council
and financed by government subventions.

BB AE  NEEER2RB-FX - K2 - BFINPH > BEIRBNEERE - BEIRBZBFRE -

BEIREERMAE  BBIREBREREREEHEDRO CEHRMKREP) IRBFIB KL B7& NI A BT/ S
&h -

The staff quarters at Chai Wan and the premises at Billion Plaza | which were financed by loan facilities, donations, and
other funds.

UAKRENBEBRSRERES —HNYE  YHER BRKEMESER -

Most of the interests in leasehold land are restricted to own use by the Council.

Ao HELHNER IEBIEEM -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
HBARNKRE

The Council
Bl
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
Unlisted shares, at cost LT - RERA 100 100

The particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

MERBMNFEMOT

56

Proportion of
Ownership Interest
el s
Place of
Incorporation and Particulars of Issued Held by Held by
Name of Company Operation and Paid Up Capital the Council Subsidiary ~ Principal Activities
AR AMRIREERE  ERORERRARE BilRNE WEARNE  TEREE
VTC School of Business and Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of vocational education and
Information Systems £ ERBRAR training
BEIRRIHERER RUBFEB RN
Technological and Higher Education Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of career-oriented degree
Institute of Hong Kong R ERERAF programmes
BERSHENRER RUNBXAANEL 2R
VTC Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - Investment holding
BEIRRLXARAA (35 f? 1008 REEZR
VTC School for Higher and Professional Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100%  Provision of continuing education and
Education (SHAPE) g# ERERLA training
ZESHEER SHAPE) RUBEEBRIIRER
The Institute of Professional Education And Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100%  Provision of continuing education and
Knowledge (PEAK) B ERERLR training
REEBER PEAK) RUREEE RIS
* - VTC Training Company Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Provision of vocational education,
BEHIERLT Eh R 100% professional training and development
senvices
RUBREL  EXVRREREH
**VTC Social Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100%  Operation of a café to create employment
BEIGRALERAR &8 ERERLT and training opportunities for disabled
students
BEWYE  ARRSERMMEAE
ke
* VTC Training Company Limited became dormant as from 1 April 2014. By virtue of Section 447 of the Companies Ordinance, a
dormant company is exempted from the annual audit of its financial statements.
H2014 54818 BEEIERATNBTEH AT - RIBATRGIZE 447 1% » TEB L RERRFEMBRERNEL -
* %k

VTC Social Enterprises Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance on 11 July 2018.

BEIRBELARD AN 2018 F 7 A 11 BREB(D ARHDEEBEMML
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16.

LOANS TO STAFF
BIEM

In conjunction with Hang Seng Bank Limited (Bank), the Council launched in April 1996 a Staff Loan Scheme to provide
financial assistance to members of the Council’s Provident Fund Scheme, part of which has subsequently been restructured
by setting up a new scheme called Vocational Training Council Provident Fund Scheme (1999) (collectively known as

the Schemes). An unsecured loan facility of HK$30 million has been arranged with the Bank for on-lending to qualified

staff members. The loans to staff are repayable in accordance with repayment schedules of which HK$465,000 (2018:
HK$386,000) is repayable within 1 year.

BIBEEERITHERAR (BBIRIT) S/ N1996F 4 AABIBABLTE(E/IEL - BITHL THEINRE A
BEE(—hAhh) SR AEEE) AN EREETERGE  RUEMBIEE - RITSRMERS EBE3,0008TH
%ﬁ#gﬁk  HBIIEBEEETEERKET - ZBETENERIEE  MHEP B 46.50& T (20185 : #B¥38.60&T)
BR—FRFE °

The loan granted to each staff member is limited to 60% of the individual’s provident fund benefit entitlement at the time of
application. In case of default on repayment, the Council can exercise its right to request the Trustees of the Schemes to retain
an amount equivalent to such indebtedness out of any benefits payable to the individual under the Schemes.
BEEINENEREE RRARBRHARRIZELAESEHEENGCO% - EE T REMKIER > BIIREEERAESFTEN
FEA REBEEIEARETTERESNENS » HIREERERMNWEEE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FEWARIE ~ FEFRIR R H At B U AR IR

Consolidated

=)

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

Accounts Receivable (Note 16(b)) FEURBRIE (K{3E 16(b)) 6,018 5,851
Other Receivables H i e BRIE 117,211 89,882
Prepayments SELNETRE 49,086 34,228
Utilities and Other Deposits KERHMIRS 37 1,501
172,352 131,462

The Council
EElIE]

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

Accounts Receivable (Note 16(b)) FEURBRTE (BIEE 16(b)) 3,683 4,882
Other Receivables HihpE YR BR1E 114,104 85,666
Prepayments FERIB 39,541 32,885
157,328 123,433

Accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments, utilities and other deposits are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

FEWERTE ~ EMEWIRTE - AR - KEREMEZRS  AHER -—FRARORERR/FX
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(a)

(b)
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
FEUBRTE - TR TR e A AR AR TE ()

Impairment of Accounts Receivable
FE U BRI 2 R {E

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
B2018F 4 51 BiEANBER

The Group and the Council measure loss allowances for receivables at an amount equal to the lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. Given the Group and the Council has not experienced any significant credit losses in the
past, the allowance for expected credit losses is insignificant.

AEBRBIRTERENENERAEERES  SEENKRBECL FREBEEEIE - ERAKERBIRB A EEM
BEAGERE BRUNGEBERERMTREE -

Policy applicable before 1 April 2018
20185 4 A1 B ZRIBAMBER

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group and the
Council are satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against
accounts receivable directly (see Note 2(g)).

FEVERR AV EBIESCENEBRET  BRILRBRBIBAATERENEE T IWE  ZUHERT - BREBES
EERBWIRR RS (R 2(g) °

At 31 March 2019, none of the Group’s and the Council’s accounts receivable (2018: Nil) were individually determined to be
impaired.

R2019F 3 A 31 H » ARBREIFHEWERMEREER LB RE (2018 F : ) o
Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired
TMERE 2 B ERTE

Accounts receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s and the Council’s
credit policy are set out in Note 21(a).

PR BRIE — AR AR B E A HEST 30 HARIE - AEBRBIIREEERFRBE HIINMFE21(a)

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

HEwm BB ES NWRBERES TERE - HRESTAOT

Consolidated

o)
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Neither Past Due nor Impaired REBEFRE 2,843 2,806
Less than 1 Month Past Due BEADKR—@EA 2,161 1,454
More than or Equal to 1 Month Past Due ZRIBHZA—EA 1,014 1,591
6,018 5,851




16.

(b)

17.

(a)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
FEURBRTE ~ TR FRIE I A A R AR TE ()

Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired (Cont’d)
THERE 2 e BR1E ()

The Council
BB

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

Neither Past Due nor Impaired RABEBEFRE 1,838 2,712
Less than 1 Month Past Due BN —EA 940 669
More than or Equal to 1 Month Past Due ZENHBEAZA—EA 905 1,501
3,683 4,882

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of individuals for whom there was no recent history

of default.
REBHAMBENERFERSR —BRERBEXELHNERNAL -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent individuals and organisations that have
a good track record with the Group and the Council. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Council does not hold any collateral over these balances.
EBHERIARENEVRRERSR —FHHEAKBRBIIEE RIFCEFNEZERNATNES - REBEER  EEER
RAREBEEENTE ARGEEZRFEANE  EEEBERA/REAUZHNRE - AEBRBIERERAERFEE

AR o
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERBEEEY
Cash And Cash Equivalents Comprise
RERBSEEYEIE
Consolidated
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Deposits with Banks with Original Maturity DRI ELR=@AMN
less than Three Months RITERER 1,399,000 103,000
Cash at Bank and On Hand RITERRES 23,044 63,827
Cash and Cash Equivalents HERIESEEY 1,422,044 166,827
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17.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont'd)
RERREESEY (E)

a) Cash And Cash Equivalents Comprise (Cont’d)
RERBRSEEYEE (B

The Council
BIN=
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Deposits with Banks with Original Maturity BEEEHEDR=EAN
less than Three Months IRITEHFER 1,399,000 103,000
Cash at Bank and On Hand RITFRRBAE 7,638 45,930
Cash and Cash Equivalents HERIRESZEEY 1,406,638 148,930

(b)  Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities
METHEENEEHIR

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

TRHFLMARERRETHPMEECEERY ERRSRIRELY HETHEENEBRERERIRKREERN
HERERERPIERMETH 2IEA

Consolidated and the Council

makBilE

Loan from
Government
(Note 19)
BREMR Total
(FizE19) FEh
HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 April 2018 201848 1H 517,356 517,356
Changes from Financing Cash Flows: METERELEZ
BEREE :
Repayment of Loan BEEXN (67,000) (67,000)
Total Changes from Financing Cash Flows AREEEMEE
ZIREREE (67,000) (67,000)
Other Changes: Hibes .
Amortisation of Deferred Interest Expenses REFHECEEN S H
for the Year 25,868 25,868
Unamortised Deferred Interest Expenses R RN B H - -
Total Other Changes HEH b 25,868 25,868
At 31 March 2019 20193 A31H 476,224 476,224
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18.

(a)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
FEAYRRIA ~ BRI - AtEMRBERESRENER

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

FEBRIE ~ BT H R HALET ARIA

Accounts Payable

Accruals

Deposits and Retentions Withheld

Receipts in Advance

Subventions Repayable to Government
(Note 18(c))

Accounts Payable

Accruals

Deposits and Retentions Withheld

Receipts in Advance

Amounts Due to Subsidiaries

Subventions Repayable to Government
(Note 18(c))

FE{FBRIE

st

RERRES

FEWERIE

ESEBNNHE S
(FfFaE 18(c))

FE{TERIE

st

RZEkRESE

FEWFRIE

FERTH B A B IE

ESZEBNNHEE
(FFEE 18(c))

Consolidated

we
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
240,782 221,274
412,346 495,718
31,950 42,861
598,174 615,152
6,128 8,769
1,289,380 1,383,774

The Council

B3I
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
192,357 180,744
403,532 491,828
31,737 42,831
300,356 317,973
1,010,171 913,407
6,128 8,769
1,944,281 1,955,552

Accounts payable, accruals and other payables are expected to be settled within one year. The contractual undiscounted
values of accounts payable, accruals and other payables as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 were the same as their respective

carrying values.

FEATERIE « St X R EMEIREFEREN —FRN (T - R2019F 3831 HK2018F3 831 H » FE{IERIE  FEst X H
NEMEMIRES B 2 RAEEZYRERTEERR -

Certain tuition fees were received and unearned before the end of the reporting period. They are treated as receipts in advance

and will be recognised as revenue within one year from the end of the reporting period.

BABRBWEEL RN BERRIBBA - BEEBBWIIATAUE » WERBERR-FABIB/BA -
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18.

(a)

62

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)

FEIERIE ~ BRI - HttENREREESEREE (&)

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables (Cont'd)
FEATRRIE - FERHSZ H R HL A FE A BRIE (48)

Movement in receipts in advance FE UL ERIE > S E)

Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018 F 4 A 1 A&

Decrease as a result of recognising revenue HRFERAER AW A TR
during the year

Increase as a result of receipts in advance B A TE WURRIE T AN

of service rendered

Balance at 31 March 2019 20194 3 A 31 H#E&R

Movement in receipts in advance FEUWFRIE 2 2 B

Balance as at 1 April 2018 2018 4 A 1 H#E&

Decrease as a result of recognising revenue HRERER AW AR
during the year

Increase as a result of receipts in advance FH 74 78 WL R IE M 1

of service rendered

Balance at 31 March 2019 2019%F 3 A 31 H& &R

Consolidated
mae

615,152
(615,152)

598,174

598,174

The Council

Bl

317,973
(317,973)

300,356

300,356

Accounts payable included balance of government subventions for Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students (see Note

18(b)).
EAREEEBNREENVUTEEELERHENEE SR (B2EMEE18(b)) °



18.

(b)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
FEAYRRIE - FESTSH - HtEMRERESRN®ERS (&)

Government Subventions for Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students
BRmBIRUEEATEERHNEEER

The Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students is to provide tuition fee reimbursement and flat-rate academic expenses
grant for needy students pursuing programmes below sub-degree level. Full or half level of tuition fee reimbursement will be
granted to students assessed to be eligible to receive full or half grant under the students means-test mechanism of the
Working Family and Student Financial Assistance Agency respectively. If students pursue programmes of duration at one year
or above, they may also receive full or half level of the flat-rate academic expenses grant.

BB ANBERIER U T EEN FER A RMHE B R ERAX ERHRY - BENBERERRERBEEEBEN
AEREEEES  WHELHEAFHEEDER  BAURELENFHBERE - BRENRERE —FIUL  TARE
PHENFENERFAI TR -

Balance as at 31 March is disclosed below:

SA31H&EHBWMT ¢
Consolidated and the Council
HERBIE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1 B8R 9,680 11,194
Government Subventions Received Wz BFERD 40,000 45,000
Less: Fees Disbursed to Beneficiaries B BT EERNER
Tuition Fees Reimbursement BHEER
— Full-rate for 1,440 (2018: 1,593) —1,440 T_\"Z(2018$:
Beneficiaries 1,593{v ) 2EEZH
EIE (29,160) (31,885)
— Half-rate for 901 (2018: 953) — 9011z (2018@:
Beneficiaries 9531 ) ¥ REZH
EIE (9,288) (9,855)
(38,448) (41,740)
Flat-rate Academic Expenses Grant BB EERIER,
— Full-rate for 1,417 (2018: 1,558) —1,417 T_\"Z(2018$:
Beneficiaries 1,558{ )2 EEZH
Hx (3,387) (3,645)
— Half-rate for 917 (2018: 963) —917 1% (2018 F:
Beneficiaries 9631 ) ¥ REZH
EIE (1,096) (1,129)
(4,483) (4,774)
Balance as at 31 March 3 B 31 &R 6,749 9,680
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18.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
FEATRRTE - FESTSH - AR RERESENERS (G&E)

(c)  Subventions Repayable to Government

ESFZE AT @R <
Consolidated and the Council
mekBIE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1 B8k 8,769 4,378
Less: Amount Refunded to Government B AEECREZEBTNEEE
during the Year (8,769) (4,378)
Subventions Refundable to Education Bureau ESEAE RNEES
— Capital Works Reserve Fund -EBRIEREES -1 272 |
- 272
Subventions Refundable to Labour ERELTITREND
and Welfare Bureau H#EBhE
— Recurrent Subventions —RE@mEE 5,123 7,161
— Capital Accounts —E#%ERE 1,005 1,336
6,128 8,497
Balance as at 31 March 331 H&eR 6,128 8,769

(d)  Provision for Employee Benefits
EEGHEE

Provision for employee benefits relates to various allowances and benefits, mainly unutilised annual leave and performance
pay, payable to employees.

BEBAEGETFEENEHREAIMNERREN  TEERAZFRRRENE -
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19. LOANS
e

Balance as at 1 April 2017

Add: Loans Drawn Down During o

the Year

Unamortised Deferred Interest
Expenses

Adjustment to the Amortised Cost

Amortisation of Deferred Interest
Expenses for the Year

Less: Loans Repaid During the Year i :

Balance as at 31 March 2018

2017F 4 B 1 BE&R

FREANER

RS 2 IRIER B
>

AR HIHEE

N HEE 2 IRSE
B

FREZNER

2018 3 A 31 H&:ek

Represented by: FRFIEDE -
Loans Payable Within One Year —FREEENER
Normal Value HE

Deferred Interest Expense

RSE R B 32 H

Loans Payable After One Year —FHREFEBNER
Normal Value [ERES
Deferred Interest Expense EERE S H
Total Balance e

Consolidated and the Council

meERBIE
Bank Loan
for On-lending

to Staff Loan from
(Note 19(a)) Government
EETFET (Note 19(b))

HIRITER BB Total

(FFEE19(a)) (FFEE19(b)) #azEs

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

1,082 427,148 428,230

600 110,000 110,600

- (41,149) (41,149)

- 21,357 21,357

1,682 517,356 519,038

(824) - (824)

858 517,356 518,214

858 67,000 67,858

- (25,868) (25,868)

858 41,132 41,990

- 603,000 603,000

- (126,776) (126,776)

- 476,224 476,224

858 517,356 518,214
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19. LOANS (Cont'd)
EX (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2018

Add: Loans Drawn Down During i

the Year

Unamortised Deferred Interest
Expenses

Adjustment to the Amortised Cost

Amortisation of Deferred Interest
Expenses for the Year

Less: Loans Repaid During the Year i :

Balance as at 31 March 2019

2018F 4 B 1 BH& 6k

FREANER

R IR 2
X

ARCHEEE

N EHEE 2 IR
FMEZH

FREBNER

2019%F 3 B 31 H& &

Represented by: FRFRIBEDE :
Loans Payable Within One Year —FREFEZENER

Normal Value
Deferred Interest Expense

H{E
EREFI S 3% H

Loans Payable After One Year —FEREEENERK
Normal Value HE
Deferred Interest Expense EEFE X H
Total Balance it er

66

Consolidated and the Council

RERBIR

Bank Loan
for On-lending
to Staff Loan from
(Note 19(a)) Government
BEFET (Note 19(b))
HIERITE K BREMR Total
(MI5E 19(a)) (MIZE 19(b)) Bz
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
858 517,356 518,214
1,140 - 1,140
— 25,868 25,868
1,998 543,224 545,222
(535) (67,000) (67,535)
1,463 476,224 477,687
1,463 67,000 68,463
— (23,811) (23,811)
1,463 43,189 44,652
- 536,000 536,000
— (102,965) (102,965)
— 433,035 433,035
1,463 476,224 477,687




19.

LOANS (Cont'd)

B (

(@)

=

&)

The loan relates to a revolving credit facility for on-lending to staff and is unsecured and bears interest at 2.275% per
annum (2018: 2.15% per annum). The interest expenses incurred are fully borne by the staff. The loan is repayable on
29 February 2020 and renewable annually subject to the Bank’s consent. The amount of the facility is HK$30 million
(2018 HK$30 million). The contractual undiscounted value of the loan as at 31 March 2019 was HK$1.5 million
(2018: HK$0.9 million).

BEEFEINWAEMERBEKFER  NEMNFREAR2.275%(2018F 1 2.15%) - IEFEXHIHERET
A EREN2020F2A29BF8 WA ABARITRAETEFEN - BRERLEA B 3,000&E T (2018
F 1 BEE3,00087T) c M2019F 331 HNENBREZ AT RERBE 1508 T (2018 F : BHEIOETT) °

Loan from the Government (the Loan) was an interest-free loan under the Start-up Loan Scheme. The Loan is for the
construction of campus in Chai Wan to operate self-financing full-time post-secondary programmes by the Technological
and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong. The Loan is secured by income generated from the operation and
management of the courses and programmes in respect of which the Loan is granted.

BAER (BRLEER) REBANFEENEAOBAERNEEER - WERAFERZUREENRS  UMHE
BEEHAERRERKEIERFN2AFELRE - LERUKREREBEZE LREZWAFEERR -

Drawdown of the Loan will be disbursed in three instalments. First, second and final instalments of HK$220 million,
HK$340 million and HK$110 million were received in March 2014, February 2015 and October 2017 respectively. The
Loan is repayable in equal annual instalments over a period of 10 years and the first repayment shall become due on
the first anniversary of the date of final drawdown.

ERBDZREZM c BR - BEDAREZRERBEE2/E2,0008 T » BHEE3E4,0008 TR BEE1121,000E T
E2AIR2014F 38 20156 F 2 AK2017F 10 AlKE - WERD 5 > BFEFHEE - XEREEHEERENK
MBRFTE—EBFERRE -

Total contractual undiscounted value of the Loan as at 31 March 2019 was HK$603 million (2018: HK$670 million),
of which HK$67 million (2018: HK$67 million) was repayable within one year and the remaining balance of HK$536
million (2018: HK$603 million) was repayable after one year. The unamortised deferred interest expenses represented
the difference between the carrying value and the redemption value of the interest-free loan using effective interest
method at a discount rate of 5%.

R2019F 3 A31 AMBHBRE 2 RKINBEABE6E300E T (20184F : B¥61E7,00087T) » EFE¥ 6,700
BT (20184 @ B¥ 6,700 8 T) AN —FREIE > 8REE5/E3,6008 7T (2018%F : B 6E300E L) AR —F#&
BE - REHECELEF E X HAREERNREMEREZ S TREFAEBERA R LTEEEEZEZ8 -
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20.

68

DEFERRED INCOME
IESE Wi

Balance as at 1 April
Subventions Received/Receivable
Recognised as Income in the Year (Note 4)

Balance as at 31 March

To Be Recognised as Income
Within One Year
After One Year

Balance as at 1 April
Subventions Received/Receivable
Recognised as Income in the Year (Note 4)

Balance as at 31 March
To Be Recognised as Income

Within One Year
After One Year

4 A1 B4
B FEWE B
RERNEZHUWA (HFE4)

3 A 31 B#gR

sRER B
—2
— %

4 A 1 B#5ER
Bl FEE BY
RERHDHWA (HFE4)

3 A 31 B&ek
R AW

—
— 5t

Consolidated

2019 2018
HK$’'000 HK$’000
2,259,058 1,951,052
3,242,054 3,463,128
(3,347,587) (3,155,122)
2,153,625 2,259,058
308,694 311,872
1,844,831 1,947,186
2,153,525 2,259,058
The Council
BalE

2019 2018
HK$’'000 HK$’000
2,231,037 1,932,230
3,225,223 3,434,596
(3,332,163) (3,135,789)
2,124,097 2,231,037
290,430 283,851
1,833,667 1,947,186
2,124,097 2,231,037

Note:  Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as revenue to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets incurred (see

Note 2(0)(i)).

izt : WERZRNBUNRPSTNRSRIIABELRE  HEUFEMAXNAFEEENTEX HSBARERRBA GBS BMEE2(0)

(i) °



21.

(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
LREREERAABE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, foreign currency and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s operations. The
Group manages and minimises these financial risks through its financial risk management policies and practices described
below:

ARBREREBBRPIREE - RBES - IMERFIZEAR - ARBEBTI 2 MBRRERBRRER THF &
ZRBEUEBERBD

Credit Risk
EERK

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to cash and deposits at banks, tuition fees and training charges receivable from individual students or
sponsoring organisations. Management manages this risk as follows:

FEERBRIESIFRERELEEEINNNIE - AMEZEFERRTIERAFRNBITNRERER - BEMHAXHEY
HERBTNEERREER EEEEEEERARNT !

Regarding the credit risk on cash and deposits at banks, the Group reviews credit ratings of banks based on approved credit
rating agencies on a regular basis. There is an investment guideline set out the selection criteria and exposure limits to
investment counterparties.

HEMARITHNRERFAZEERR  AHESEHRMAITTNEETRRBREHRITNEETR - MIREESIFR
EIHHRERFHFNEEEENRERE -

In respect of tuition fees and training charges receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on all students requiring
credit over a certain amount. These take into account the students’ past payment history, financial position and other factors.
Tuition fees and training charges receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from students.

RLBEBENREER A SHRE-—TEESENBLETAAGENM - ZEFAHSZEEELBENNTRTE R
MEREMEE BERREEA -RHZXEAHEF30BRIE - AEBE—RISERBERMETR -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure arising from accounts receivable and other receivables are
set out in Note 16.

AHEBHEUIREREMEBRRENSCRBESHIEHNHE 16
Liquidity Risk
MEE TR

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that funds are not available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserve of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group invests surplus cash in bank deposits not exceeding an average horizon
of three years.

RBECEREEIBENEERENIMNERE - ARBNBRAEHERRASGR AR ZABESER - UBRERZ
MINERFEE AUBNEHAERARBESER - AEBREFKNEESFRARITEEITZIR=ZGENERENR °

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities at the balance sheet date of the Group and the Council are
disclosed in Notes 18 and 19. The contractual maturities are calculated based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group and the Council are required to pay.
THERBIEREEANNBEEZZNREENERTEIEE - SHRMTE18MI9FIFE - ZNRENERT 2 A RRER
AREARFTAZRER (BEUZOREZANZRIAEEANFRMZBHERMAFEZRE L) » URAEEFEIE W
BRRENRBRTEN -

Foreign Currency Risk

SN LR

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

FEBRZYLUBEE  BEARIIMNEREERER
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21.

(d)

(e)

22.

70

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Cont'd)
EREREERAEEE)

Interest Rate Risk
F = & b

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its borrowing activities. The Group considers that it is not exposed to any
significant interest rate risk arising from its borrowings as at 31 March 2019. The bank loan obtained is for on-lending to staff
who will reimburse the same amount of interest to the Group and the loan from the Government is non-interest bearing.
AEBNANZERTIERBEEEE - AMEIRAUBETER2019F3A31L HNEEREERNFRE - RITEREMN
AEBFAENEENESHEEATET MBFERBRRER -

Fair Values
NAREE

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

FrESMIEN2019F3A31HK2018F3 A3 ANEREEEEAARBEIEERESE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BELRS

Due to the nature of the Group’s operations and the composition of the Council members of the Vocational Training Council
(being drawn from private and public operations), it is inevitable that transactions may take place with organisations in

which a Council member may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a Council member or senior
management of the Group may have an interest are conducted at an arm’s length basis and in accordance with the Group’s
financial regulations and normal procurement procedure. Donations received from Council members, senior management or
companies controlled or significantly influenced by them had been approved and reported in accordance with the Group’s
financial regulations.

HARHENEERES  RBIRHNESERENAK (RAERAEHKBIRE)  AHEETRAHEESENEEFRE
BNHBETRS - B RESESHEITIHBEETESENRZYIRELA L RARAKBH KRR EENRERFE
T-REETEKE  BEESEITHEHNREEZEN A A BB ER IR IBE NS KR R R RS o
Remuneration for key management personnel is as follows:

TEEHENENMEFENT

Consolidated

l|‘7-|_\é

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$’000

Short-term Employee Benefits EHEERER 44,142 44,026

The Council
EEllE

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

Short-term Employee Benefits EHIEEER 38,477 40,422

The above remuneration is included in “staff expenses” (see Note 8). The Group’s contributions to retirement schemes are
also set out in Note 8.

M EEFTATETIHX | A E2HMEES) o B Z RGBT FIZMNAHEES



23.  COMMITMENTS
Z3

(a) Capital Commitments in Respect of Property, Plant and Equipment Outstanding at 31 March 2019 and 2018 Not
Provided for in the Financial Statements were as follows:

R2019F3 331 HX 20183 A 31 H 2% - BBERRERNUBRERBEHE 2 ERALZNT ¢

Consolidated and the Council

makBilE

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$’'000

Contracted for EHES) 25,796 58,106
Authorised but not Contracted for EEEETRETY 433,885 379,087
Total ST 459,681 437,193

(b)  Asat 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Total Future Minimum Lease Payments under Operating Leases in respect of

Properties are Payable as follows:
R2019F3H31HK 201853 A31H » MXULEHEHA 2 BNRERENFTATMNT ¢

Consolidated and the Council

makBilE

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’'000

Within 1 Year —F R 6,120 6,054
After 1 Year but Within 5 Years —FEZEBETZREE 869 2,703
6,989 8,757

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three
years, with an option to renew the leases when all terms are negotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
AHEBUREHEHEA- LY - —REEHNHBEFA-Z=F EfMERIEEEREE  WRBESHERAZYE - IE
HETEELEHES -
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24.

72

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZE2019F3 A 31 BIEFEEAMERREMEET - FEEARBETEEBKHNTE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards

and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2019 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

BEAMBRETIEL > BEBSHASEC AMBIBLYEET  FIZEARRE  BERBE2019F3A31HLEZFERKRE
B WA ARARIEREPERA - AJREREEEBENEITMFEANNT -

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

T ST HARIBA A AR B A

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
(BEMBREERDE 1655 [ HE 2019 1A 1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

AHBIR ERELBET BRI RZEHYVAEAPENEEELTMGE - 25 BHNERBRAB LB  REARK
BB RREESEAREE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL

TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)
BREIGBABSHB (—AAA) (HBHE) ZRANBIKKARE

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme, which
comprise the statement of net assets available for benefits as at 31
March 2019, and the statement of changes in net assets available
for benefits and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme
as at 31 March 2019 and of its financial transactions and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) and with reference to Practice Note 860.1
(Revised), The Audit of Retirement Schemes issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Scheme in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of trustees for the financial statements

The trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the provisions of the Hong
Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and for such
internal control as the trustees determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible
for assessing the Scheme’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either
intend to liquidate the Scheme or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal
control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the trustees.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Scheme’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Scheme to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the trustees regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 July 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF
VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)
HEXIGRBLABEFAH (—Ahh) (HBEHAE)ZEANBIKBMETRS

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the year
ended 31 March 2019 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 (Revised), The
Audit of Retirement Schemes (“PN860.1 (Revised)”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
have issued an unqualified auditor’s report thereon dated 22 July
2019.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (“ORS0”), we are required to report whether the Scheme
complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Trustees’ Responsibilities
The ORSO requires the trustees to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets,
liabilities and financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) contributions are made in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme;
(c) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,

charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied
with.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical
requirements of the “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants”
issued by the HKICPA, which is founded on fundamental principles
of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care,
confidentiality and professional behaviour.

The firm applies Hong Kong Standard on Quality Control 1 and
accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality control
including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance
with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable
legal and regulatory requirements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to report solely to you, as a body, on the
Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements based on the
results of the procedures performed by us and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to PN 860.1 (Revised) issued by

the HKICPA. We have planned and performed our work to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Scheme has complied with
the above requirements.

We have planned and performed such procedures as we considered
necessary with reference to the procedures recommended on PN
860.1 (Revised), which included reviewing, on a test basis, evidence
obtained from the Trustees regarding the Scheme’s compliance with
the above requirements.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion
Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

(1) proper accounts and records have been kept during the year
ended 31 March 2019 as regards all assets, liabilities and
financial transactions of the Scheme;

(2) contributions have been made in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2019;
and at 31 March 2019, there was no shortfall between
the Scheme’s assets and the Scheme’s aggregate vested
liability;

(3) at 31 March 2019, the assets of the Scheme were
not subject to any assignment, charge, pledge or other
encumbrance except for those specified in section 20(3)(b)
(iii) of the ORSO; and

(4) at 30 June 2018, 31 October 2018 and 31 March 2019,
the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been
complied with.

Intended Users and Purpose

This report is intended solely for submission by the trustees to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone for any other purpose.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 July 2019
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
MR2019F3A3IAAMBENNIMRNBEERR

2019 2018
HK$’'000 HK$’000

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investments Managed by Investment Managers #REKLEEENREIER 4,101,722 4,321,634
Accounts and Other Receivables FEUR Rz E A FE U BR TR - 4
Cash and Cash Equivalents HeRBESEEY 7,185 23,464
4,108,907 4,345,102

CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts and Other Payables FEAS I EL 1 AT BR X 54 52
Benefits Payable FEA1EFI 16,004 21,699
16,058 21,751
NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS AHEBEANTRNREE 4,092,849 4,323,351

Represented by: FHRFRESE -

CAPITAL ACCOUNT BRERE 4,092,849 4,323,351

Approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Trustees

on 22 July 2019

R2019F7 22 H
HETZESHRRERRE

Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yin
Chairman

Board of Trustees
BEBLE
EEEEEEE
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BE2019F3A831IHLEFEEAHEN SRV BEESEHRR

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
INVESTMENT RETURN BE LR
Interest Income FEWA 7,178 2,896
Net Realised Gain on Investments SEBENREFWE 222,479 347,268
Net Movement in Unrealised AEBHNRE
(Loss)/Gain on Investments (B8, W FEH (263,659) 195,702
(34,002) 545,866
INVESTMENT EXPENSES REEH
Investment Management Fees KREEEEHR 661 583
661 583
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES THEHR
Administrator’s Fees 1TERIEE B 661 725
Accountancy Fees SEA 91 100
Audit Fees E%ER 54 52
Miscellaneous Expenses IR 34 34
840 911
NET (LOSS)/GAIN FOR THE YEAR FR(EBR)WFE (35,503) 544,372
CONTRIBUTIONS fERK
Contributions from the Council B EH 132,907 139,589
Contributions from Members REFK 43,858 45,957
176,765 185,546
BENEFIT PAYMENTS BRZH
Benefits on Termination of Service BiEER 28,638 17,837
Retirement Benefits EBIRER] 341,716 506,946
Death Benefits R 48 K 1,410 9,184
371,764 533,967
(DECREASE)/INCREASE IN NET ASSETS AEAHBERNARNFEE
AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR (ijﬁﬁ\)/i‘gbl] (230,502) 195,951
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL
AS THE SOLE TRUSTEE OF NEW TECHNOLOGY TRAINING FUND (THE FUND)
HEXIRBEAFIREINIES (HBES)H—RRAANBILLZHMERS

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Fund, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019,
the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in trust funds and cash flow statement for the
year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (HKSAs) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Fund in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to the fact that the trustee of the Fund intend

to put the Fund into liquidation in the near future and therefore the
Fund is no longer considered to be a going concern. Details about
the basis of preparation of the financial statements are set out in
note 3(b) to the financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Use of Report

This report is intended solely for the information of and use by the
trustee of the Fund and is not intended for any other purpose. This
report should not be disclosed, referred to or quoted in whole or in
part without our prior written consent.

Trustee’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The trustee of the Fund is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the trustee determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the trustee of the Fund is
responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The trustee consider that the Fund is no longer a going
concern and have prepared the financial statements on the basis as
set out in note 3(b) therein.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and

for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal
control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the trustee of the Fund.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustee of the Fund’s
judgement that the Fund is no longer a going concern based
on the audit evidence obtained.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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We communicate with the trustee of the Fund regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 August 2019
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE2019F3A31HLEFENL2EKRER

INCOME WA
Interest Income FEWA
EXPENDITURE X H
Training Grants 1SRRG
Auditor's Remuneration ZHEE &

DEFICITS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REEFREREEWZEEE
FOR THE YEAR

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
834 1,372
(1,520) (2,591)
(22) (21)
(1,542) (2,612)
(708) (1,240)

The Fund had no components of comprehensive income other than “deficits for the year” in either of the periods presented. Therefore,

the Fund’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “deficits for the year” in both periods.

BRTY AFERFIN ESREKPBILREEMEERA  ALESRZEHNEN [AFERT | HER [ 2EKRHRBHE] -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
20196 3A31BMMBRAR

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Bank Deposits with Maturity over FHFAEB=EAK
Three Months and Within One Year RERZHIWIRITERK - 105,200
Accounts Receivable FEUR BRIE = 203
Cash and Cash Equivalents HERBESEEY 106,895 2,422
106,895 107,825
Less: o
CURRENT LIABILITY REEE
Accounts Payable FE{ERIE (21) (243)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 106,874 107,582
NET ASSETS EEFE 106,874 107,582
Represented by: FRREDE :
TRUST FUNDS EEEE
Capital Fund BERES 105,000 105,000
Revenue Fund WAES 1,874 2,582
106,874 107,582

Approved and authorised for issue

by the Vocational Training Council

as Trustee of the Fund

on 29 August 2019

20198 A 29 H
HBXINIREUEESITABRMERTREREK

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, BBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BEIRBERE

fEE ¥+, GBS, BBS, JP
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